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Federal Summary 

 
Skagit County 

January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 
 
 
The results of our audit of Skagit County are summarized below in accordance with U.S. Office 
of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting: 
 

 Significant Deficiencies:  We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

 
 Material Weaknesses:  We identified deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 
 
We noted instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the 
County. 
 
FEDERAL AWARDS 
 
Internal Control Over Major Programs: 
 

 Significant Deficiencies:  We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant 
deficiencies. 

 
 Material Weaknesses:  We identified deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 
 
We issued an unqualified opinion on the County’s compliance with requirements applicable to 
its major federal programs. 
 
We reported findings that are required to be disclosed under section 510(a) of OMB Circular 
A-133. 
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Identification of Major Programs: 
 
The following were major programs during the period under audit:  
 

CFDA No. Program Title 
  

10.665 Schools and Roads Grants to States 

16.803 ARRA – Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant/Grants to 
States and Territories (Recovery Act) 

66.439 Targeted Watershed Grants 

93.045 Aging Cluster – Title III, Part C – Nutrition Services 

93.053 Aging Cluster – Nutrition Services Incentive Program 

93.069 Public Health Emergency Preparedness 

93.563 Child Support Enforcement 

93.705 ARRA – Aging Cluster Home Delivered Nutrition Services for States 
(Recovery Act) 

93.707 ARRA – Aging Cluster Congregate Nutrition Services for States 
(Recovery Act) 

93.959 Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 

97.036 Disaster Grants Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 
 
The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed 
by OMB Circular A-133, was $300,000. 
 
The County did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133. 
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 

Questioned Costs 

 
Skagit County 

January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 
 
 
1. Skagit County’s internal controls were inadequate to ensure compliance 

with requirements for grants used to pay for programs for the aging. 
 
CFDA Number and Title: 93.045  Special Programs for the Aging – Title III, 

Part C – Nutrition Services  

93.053  Nutrition Services Incentive Program 

93.705  ARRA Aging Home –Delivered Nutrition 
Services for States  

93.707  ARRA - Aging Congregate Nutrition 
Services for States 

Federal Grantor Name: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Federal Award/Contract Number: 121009-NUTR 
Pass-through Entity Name: Northwest Regional Council 
Pass-through Award/Contract 
Number: C20090063, A20090163 and A20100006 
Questioned Cost Amount: $0 
 
Background 
 
Skagit County’s Senior Services Department administers a program that coordinates a 
system to provide long-term care for the aging in home and community-based settings.  
The County used $270,668 of this grant money for the program in fiscal year 2009. 
 
Description of Condition 
 
Suspension and Debarment 
 
Federal regulations prohibit grant recipients from paying more than $25,000 to parties 
that are suspended or debarred from doing business with the federal government.  Grant 
recipients must take one of the following steps to comply with the regulations: 

 Consult the federal Excluded Parties List before awarding funds to subrecipients 
or contractors.  

 Insert a clause or condition into the contract that states the subrecipient or 
contractor is not suspended or debarred.  

 Obtain a written suspension and debarment certification from the subrecipient or 
contractor. 
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We found the County did not check to see whether a vendor was suspended or 
disbarred before awarding an $86,917.21 contract for the purchase of supplies and 
materials.  
 
We determined the vendor was not suspended or debarred by reviewing the Excluded 
Parties List System. 
 
Procurement 
 
When purchasing goods and services with federal funds, local governments must follow 
applicable state laws and the A-102 Common Rule.  State law requires counties 
competitively bid supplies and materials for purchases that exceed $25,000.  The A-102 
Common Rule provides purchasing guidance for state and local governments when no 
state laws pertain to the item/service being procured.  The Common Rule requires 
quotes for purchases up to $100,000 and bids for purchases over $100,000. 
 
We found the County did not competitively bid an $86,917 purchasing contract with a 
food vendor.  The County purchased the items using a contract through the State 
Department of General Administration that had expired and that did not apply to the 
items purchased.  
 
Cause of Condition 
 
We reported this condition to the County in 2008.  The County made the recommended 
improvements after the 2009 audit period ended.   
 
Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
Suspension and Debarment 
 
Failure to ensure that contractors and subrecipients are authorized to participate in 
federal programs can result in unallowable costs being charged to the grant.  This could 
affect the County’s eligibility to receive federal funding in the future. 
 
Procurement 
 
When the County does not use a competitive bid process, it increases the risk that it 
does not receive the best price. 
 
We were able to determine that costs charged to this program were allowable and are 
not questioning them. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the County establish and follow adequate internal controls and 
monitoring to ensure it meets all federal grant requirements.  
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County’s Response 
 
The repeat of this finding is an unfortunate timing issue and is a continuation from the 
2008 audit.  The County established recommended changes based on the audit, but 
because the audit was completed so late in the year the changes affected only the last 
quarter of 2009.  The changes include assuring suspension and debarment certification 
language is included in all contracts additional verification of purchases made using 
state-bid contracts.  The County has established and follows adequate internal controls 
and monitoring to ensure we meet all federal grant requirements. 
 
Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We appreciate the steps the County is taking to resolve this issue.  We will review the 
condition during our next audit. 
 
Applicable laws and Regulations 
 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, Section 300, states in part: 
  

The auditee shall: 
   

(b) Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal 
awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of 
contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect on 
each of its Federal programs. 
 
(c) Comply with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts 
or grant agreements related to each of its Federal programs. 
 

Title 2, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 180.220 - Are any procurement contracts 
included as covered transactions? 
 

(b) Specifically, a contract for goods or services is a covered transaction if 
any of the following applies: 
 

(1) The contract is awarded by a participant in a non-procurement 
transaction that is covered under Sec. 180.210, and the amount of 
the contract is expected to equal or exceed $25,000. 

 
Title 2, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 180.300 - What must I do before I enter 
into a covered transaction with another person at the next lower tier? 
 

When you enter into a covered transaction with another person at the 
next lower tier, you must verify that the person with whom you intend to 
do business is not excluded or disqualified. You do this by: 
 

(a) Checking the EPLS; or 

(b) Collecting a certification from that person if allowed by this 
rule; or 
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(c) Adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with 
that person. 

 
Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 92.36 - Procurement, states in part: 

 
Grantees and sub-grantees will use their own procurement procedures 
which reflect applicable State and local laws and regulations, provided 
that the procurements conform to applicable Federal law and the 
standards identified in this section. 
  
All procurement transactions will be conducted in a manner providing full 
and open competition consistent with the standards of Sec. 92.36. 
  
Grantees and sub grantees will maintain records sufficient to detail the 
significant history of procurement. These records will include, but are not 
necessarily limited to the following: rationale for the method of 
procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, 
and the basis for the contract price. 

 
Revised Code of Washington 36.32.245, Competitive bids – Requirements – 
Advertisements – Exceptions, states in part: 

 
(1) No contract for the purchase of materials, equipment, or supplies may 
be entered into by the county legislative authority or by any elected or 
appointed officer of the county until after bids have been submitted to the 
county. 
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 

Questioned Costs 

 
Skagit County  

 January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 
 
 
2. Skagit County did not comply with Child Support Enforcement grant 

requirements.  
 
CFDA Number and Title: 93.563  Child Support Enforcement 

Federal Grantor Name: 
U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services Administration For Children and 
Families 

Federal Award/Contract Number: NA 

Pass-through Entity Name: Department of Social and Health Services 
 

Pass-through Award/Contract Number: 2110-80608 and 0863-31629-01 
Questioned Cost Amount: $26,099 
 
Description of Condition 
 
The County received $609,153 in Child Support Enforcement grant money to assist it in 
non-custodial parents, establishing paternity and obtaining child and spousal support.  
 
During our audit of this grant in 2008, we found the County had not updated the numbers 
it uses to calculate indirect costs such as administrative operating costs that it charged 
to the grant since 2002.  The County-wide indirect cost allocation plan also did not 
contain an organizational chart as required by the grant.  These indirect cost rates are 
used in proposals to the grantor and are to be updated annually unless agreed to in 
advance by the grantor.  
 
We found this condition continued in 2009.  
 
Cause of Condition 
 
After our 2008 audit, the County took steps to update its indirect cost rate proposal.  
However, the revised proposal was not in place until after the 2009 audit period ended. 
 
Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
During fiscal year 2009, the County was reimbursed for $83,979 in indirect costs that 
were not supported by a current rate proposal.  We are questioning costs of $26,099.  
This is the difference between the amount reimbursed and the amount calculated using 
the current rate.  
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Recommendation 
 
We recommend the County update its indirect cost rate proposals annually, as required, 
and consult with the grantor about repayment of questioned costs. 
 
County’s Response 
 
This is a carryover from the 2008 audit, in which the SAO questioned $89,979 in indirect 
costs.  In November of 2009, based on the 2008 audit finding, the County contracted 
with Miller & Miller, P.S. to guide us in determining the costs to be measured and 
methods used to measure the costs that are included in the indirect cost rate.  The study 
was completed in May of 2010, much too late for use in 2009.  This new rate is current 
being used for 2010 and the County has established criteria for the cost allocation plan 
to be updated annually.  The questioned costs in the 2008 audit were compared to the 
new rate and it was determined that the County will receive a refund.  We expect this will 
continue for the year 2009. 
 
Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We appreciate the steps the County is taking to resolve this issue.  We will follow up 
during our next audit. 
 
Applicable laws and Regulations 
 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, Section 300, states in part: 
 

The auditee shall: 
 

(b) Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal 
awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of 
contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect on 
each of its Federal programs. 
 
(c) Comply with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts 
or grant agreements related to each of its Federal programs. 

 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local 
and Indian Governments, Attachment C, Section D, states in part: 
 

3. All other local governments claiming central service costs must develop 
a plan in accordance with the requirements described in this Circular and 
maintain the plan and related supporting documentation for audit. These 
local governments are not required to submit their plans for Federal 
approval unless they are specifically requested to do so by the cognizant 
agency. Where a local government only receives funds as a sub recipient, 
the primary recipient will be responsible for negotiating indirect cost rates 
and/or monitoring the sub recipient's plan. 
 
4. All central service cost allocation plans will be prepared and, when 
required, submitted within six months prior to the beginning of each of the 
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governmental unit's fiscal years in which it proposes to claim central 
service costs. Extensions may be granted by the cognizant agency on a 
case by case basis. 

 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local 
and Indian Governments, Attachment E, Section D, Part 1(d), states in part: 
 

Indirect cost proposals must be developed (and, when required, 
submitted) within six months after the close of the governmental unit's 
fiscal year, unless an exception is approved by the cognizant Federal 
agency. If the proposed central service cost allocation plan for the same 
period has not been approved by that time, the indirect cost proposal may 
be prepared including an amount for central services that is based on the 
latest federally approved central service cost allocation plan. The 
difference between these central service amounts and the amounts 
ultimately approved will be compensated for by an adjustment in a 
subsequent period. 
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Schedule of Audit Findings and Responses 

 
Skagit County 

January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 
 
 
3. Skagit County needs to improve its internal controls over accounting and 

financial reporting. 
 
Background  
 
County management, the state Legislature, state and federal agencies and bondholders 
rely on financial statement information to make decisions.  It is the responsibility of 
County management to design and follow internal controls that provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting. Our audit identified significant 
deficiencies in controls that adversely affect the County’s ability to produce reliable 
financial statements. 
 
We issued a similar finding to the County during previous audits of its 2008 and 2007 
financial statements.  The County has continued to make improvements in its internal 
controls over preparation of the financial statements, including asset depreciation 
calculations and general fund accounts receivable reporting.  
 
Government Auditing Standards, prescribed by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, require the auditor to communicate a material weakness, as defined below in the 
Applicable Laws and Regulations section, as a finding. 
 
Description of Condition 
 
We identified the following significant deficiencies in internal controls that, when taken 
together, represent a material weakness in the County’s controls over financial 
statement preparation: 
 

 The County’s procedures for recording additions, deletions, and reporting capital 
assets were not working as designed.  The procedures failed to identify Solid 
Waste capital assets owned by the County for inclusion in its asset database and 
to remove assets no longer owned by the County.  
 

 Staff responsible for the preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards did not have adequate knowledge of reporting requirements and 
communication between the County Auditor’s Office and departments of the 
County was not sufficient to ensure that staff preparing the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards obtained the necessary information to ensure 
the schedule was accurate and complete.  
 

 Staff responsible for preparing accounts receivable amounts for the General 
Fund financial statements did not have the necessary information to ensure the 
Superior Court net accounts receivable balance was included in the financial 
statements.  
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These deficiencies in internal controls make it reasonably possible serious 
misstatements could occur and not be prevented or detected by the County. 
 
Cause of Condition 
 
The County has experienced significant turnover in the key positions responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and supporting schedules.  County management 
did not provide those assigned to prepare the financial statements with adequate 
resources, training or oversight to ensure their knowledge of the accounting principles, 
reporting requirements and County operations.  
 
Effect of Condition 
 
There were several large balances on the financial statements that contained significant 
errors or that we were not able to audit. The particular issues are documented below: 

 
Solid Waste Capital Assets: 
The Solid Waste Division’s capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and 
equipment, and improvements.  The County did not ensure the database listing the 
division’s capital assets was complete, nor could the County support the existence of all 
capital assets reported on its financial statements.  Due to turnover in staff, these errors 
were not identified by the employees responsible for preparing the statements.  
 
As a result, 10 land parcels with a total estimated historical cost of $147,250 and two 
buildings with a total estimated historical cost of $966,268 were omitted.  And equipment 
and buildings no longer owned by the County were included as fully depreciated assets 
with an original cost of $159,821.  These errors have been corrected by the County.  
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards: 
Portions of three federal grants were omitted from the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and one grant was completely omitted from the schedule.  
 
Due to the turnover in staff and a lack of effective communication between the Auditor’s 
Office and County departments, employees responsible for preparing this schedule did 
not know that grant expenditures listed were incomplete.  As a result, expenditures 
reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards were understated by 
$969,429.  The County corrected these errors.  The correction also resulted in our 
adding the federal grant program to the scope of our audit. 
 
General Fund Accounts Receivable: 
Controls over the preparation of the County’s financial statements did not ensure the 
Superior Court net accounts receivable balance of $240,968 was included in the General 
Fund balance.  Therefore, the net accounts receivable balance shown in the financial 
statements was incorrect.  The County has corrected this error. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the County: 
 

 Establish and follow effective procedures and oversight to ensure accurate 
recording of capital asset additions, deletions and reporting. 
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 Provide proper training, and oversight of staff to ensure a complete and accurate 
of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared.   

 Establish and maintain effective communication between the Auditor’s Office and 
County departments of accounting information. 

 Establish and follow internal control procedures that include a review of the 
financial statements after final preparation to ensure all account balances are 
complete and reported on the financial statements. 

 
County’s Response 
 
During 2009 the County experienced turnover in two key positions primarily responsible 
for the preparation of the annual financial statements.  This resulted in a loss of 
continuity and some general ledger accounting functions were not maintained on a 
consistent basis.  Accordingly, there were some deficiencies in controls over accounting 
and reporting. 
 
Solid Waste Capital Assets 
Due to lack of adequate staffing, the statements did not receive a complete review and 
analysis.  In the future, there are several steps that will be taken to improve internal 
control.  The Solid Waste Manager will be included more fully into the Fund's statement 
preparation and asset list and valuation.  The capital assets (land, buildings, equipment 
and other improvements) will receive a more detailed analysis to determine useful life, 
historical cost, depreciation and a more accurate evaluation of book value.  Ultimately, 
the County was able to provide justification for cost valuations of the land parcels and 
land improvements.  Equipment and buildings no longer owned by the County were 
removed and the two buildings which were originally omitted were added.  These errors 
have been corrected by the County. 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
As stated in the finding, there has been turnover in staff responsible for the preparation 
of this schedule.  In addition, there were new requirements on federal grants this year.  
The County will provide additional training this year, and has adequately staffed both 
positions responsible for preparation and review of this Schedule. 
 
General Fund Accounts Receivable 
The Local Court Revenue Report is generated by the state Administrator of the Courts in 
January of each year.  That report includes the net accounts receivable balance for 
Skagit County Superior Court.  The Clerk's Office will forward a copy of that report to the 
Auditor to be included in the County General Fund financial reports in the future. 
 
Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We appreciate the steps the County is taking to resolve this issue.  We will review the 
condition during our next audit. 
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Applicable Laws and Regulations 
 
RCW 43.09.200 states: 
 

The state auditor shall formulate, prescribe, and install a system of 
accounting and reporting for all local governments, which shall be uniform 
for every public institution, and every public office, and every public 
account of the same class. 
 
The system shall exhibit true accounts and detailed statements of funds 
collected, received, and expended for account of the public for any 
purpose whatever, and by all public officers, employees, or other persons. 
 
The accounts shall show the receipt, use, and disposition of all public 
property, and the income, if any, derived there from; all sources of public 
income, and the amounts due and received from each source; all 
receipts, vouchers, and other documents kept, or required to be kept, 
necessary to isolate and prove the validity of every transaction; all 
statements and reports made or required to be made, for the internal 
administration of the office to which they pertain; and all reports published 
or required to be published, for the information of the people regarding 
any and all details of the financial administration of public affairs. 

 
Budget Accounting and Reporting System (BARS) Manual - Part 3, Accounting, 
Chapter 1,   Accounting Principles and General Procedures, Section B. Internal Control, 
states in part: 
 

Management is responsible for the entity’s performance, compliance and 
financial reporting. Therefore, the adequacy of internal controls to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of such objectives is 
also the responsibility of management. 

 
Government Auditing Standards, January 2007 Revision - Section 5.11, states in part: 
 

For all financial audits, auditors should report the following deficiencies in 
internal control: 
 

a. Significant deficiency: a deficiency in internal control, or 
combination of deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s 
ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial 
data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles such that there is a more than remote likelihood that a 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that is more than 
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected. 
 
b. Material weakness: a significant deficiency, or combination of 
significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote 
likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected.  
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Schedule of Prior Federal Audit Findings 

 
Skagit County 

January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 
 
 
This schedule presents the status of federal findings reported in prior audit periods.  The status 
listed below is the representation of Skagit County.  The State Auditor’s Office has reviewed the 
status as presented by the County. 
 
Audit Period: 
1/1/2008 – 
12/31/2008 

Report Reference 
No: 
1002734 

Finding Reference 
No: 
1 

CFDA Number(s): 
93.045 and 93.053 

Federal Program Name and Granting 
Agency: 
Special Programs for the Aging – Title III, 
Part C - Nutrition Services, Nutrition Services 
Incentive Program  
U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services 

Pass-Through Agency Name: 
Northwest Regional Council 

Finding Caption: 
Skagit County did not establish internal controls to ensure compliance with federal 
requirements over its Aging Cluster programs for allowable costs, suspension and debarment 
and procurement requirements. 
Background:  
Skagit County’s Senior Services Department administers the County’s adult aging program.  
The County reported program expenditures of $241,432 for fiscal year 2008.  The audit found 
that eight salaried and seven hourly employees were not preparing semiannual certifications 
as required by the federal Office of Management and Budget Circular A-87.  
 
Federal regulations prohibit recipients of federal awards from granting subawards to 
subrecipients or awarding contracts in excess of $25,000 to parties who are suspended or 
debarred from doing business with the federal government.  When awarding a vendor contract 
for $145,435, the County did not ensure the vendor was not suspended or debarred.  
 
When purchasing goods and services with federal funds, local governments must follow 
applicable state laws and the A-102 Common Rule.  State law requires counties competitively 
bid supplies and materials for purchases that exceed $25,000.  During 2008 the County did not 
competitively bid a contract for purchasing supplies and materials from a food vendor, totaling 
$145,435. 
Status of Corrective Action: (check one) 
x Fully Corrected  Partially Corrected  No Corrective Action Taken  Finding is considered no longer valid 

Corrective Action Taken: 
A. Allowable costs 
 
Senior Services has created monthly certification forms used by departmental employees 
working on federal grants.  These forms were created and used after the 2008 audit finding for 
the remainder of 2009 and are in use today. 
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B. Suspension and debarment 
 
Each time Senior Services begins working with a new vendor and quarterly for all continuing 
vendors, staff checks the EPLS website listing for suspended and debarred suppliers.  When 
the query is made, a copy of the screen is made and placed in the vendor file.  If a vendor is 
found to be suspended or debarred, business with them will cease immediately. 
 
In addition, all county contracts now include suspension and debarment certification language. 
All contract reviews include a specific review for compliance. 
 
C. Procurement 
 
Senior Services regularly checks the Washington State Department of General Administration 
WEB site to assure that vendors with whom orders are being placed are currently under a 
state contract.  This check is documented and placed in the vendor file.   
 
Local vendors are used to purchase fresh, in season produce.  Because of the nature of farm 
prices and a lack of adequate state contracts in this area, Senior Services uses a wide variety 
of local vendors and monitors each to assure that purchases with each vendor remain under 
$2,500 per fiscal year.  To the extent possible, phone bids are done to assure the best price 
available.  Documentation on cumulative purchases is kept in the department and monitored to 
assure that the vendor is no longer used when the maximum is reached. 

 
Audit Period: 
1/1/2008 – 
12/31/2008 

Report Reference 
No: 
1002734 

Finding Reference 
No: 
2 

CFDA Number(s): 
93.563 

Federal Program Name and Granting 
Agency: 
Child Support Enforcement, 
U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services Administration for Children and 
Families 

Pass-Through Agency Name: 
Department of Social and Health Services 

Finding Caption: 
Skagit County did not comply with allowable cost compliance requirements related to its Child 
Support Enforcement grants. 
Background: 
During fiscal year 2008, the County received $583,467 in Child Support Enforcement grant 
funds to enforce support obligations owed by noncustodial parents, locate absent parents, 
establish paternity and obtain child and spousal support.  We reviewed the method used to 
calculate indirect costs claimed for reimbursement by this grant and found the County had not 
updated numbers used in the calculation since 2002.  The proposal also did not contain an 
organizational chart as required by the grant.  Indirect cost rate proposals should be updated 
annually unless agreed to in advance by the grantor.  Questioned costs were $83,979. 
Status of Corrective Action: (check one) 
x Fully Corrected  Partially Corrected  No Corrective Action Taken  Finding is considered no longer valid 

Corrective Action Taken: 
In 2009 the County contracted with Miller and Miller for training in the development of an 
indirect cost allocation rate, which was completed and implemented in 2010.  The County will 
review this plan annually.  
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Status of Prior Audit Findings 

 
Skagit County 

January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 
 
 
The status of findings contained in the prior years’ audit reports of Skagit County is provided 
below: 
 
1. Skagit County has inadequate internal controls over accounting and financial 

reporting.  
 

Report No. 1002734, dated December 28, 2009 
 
Background 
 
During the 2008 audit, we identified significant deficiencies in internal controls that, when 
taken together represented a material weakness in the County’s controls over financial 
statement preparation.  

There has been significant turnover in the position primarily responsible for the 
compilation of departmental information and preparation of the County’s financial 
statements.  A sufficiently detailed review and reconciliation of the financial statement 
amounts was not performed to ensure the statements and supporting schedules were 
accurate, complete and adequately supported.  

Staff responsible for preparing accounts receivable amounts for the General Fund 
financial statements did not have the necessary information about court operations to 
ensure all applicable accounts receivable were included and were unaware of 
acceptable methods for estimating the collectible portion of its District Court accounts 
receivable.  Further, the County did not retain adequate documentation to support the 
accounts receivable balance shown on the General Fund financial statements. 

The County’s system of internal controls over the calculation of depreciation was 
inappropriate and did not ensure depreciation amounts were correctly calculated and 
consistently applied to similar assets. The controls were not designed to detect and 
correct errors at the calculation level or in the depreciation expense balance in a timely 
manner. 

Status 
 
The County has implemented internal controls which include a final review of the annual 
report; however, we identified other significant deficiencies over the financial statements 
and supporting schedule preparation process that, when taken together, represent a 
material weakness in the County’s controls.  See Schedule of Audit Findings and 
Responses, Finding 1.  
 
The County used the acceptable method for reporting the District Court accounts 
receivable; however, the Superior Court accounts receivable were not included in the 
General Fund balance.  See Schedule of Audit Findings and Responses, Finding 1.  
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We determined that the County has implemented internal controls over its depreciation 
calculation and has created a new system for tracking its capital assets and calculating 
accumulated depreciation.   
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal 

Control over Financial Reporting and on 

Compliance and Other Matters in Accordance 

with Government Auditing Standards 

 
Skagit County 

January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 
 
 
Board of Commissioners 
Skagit County 
Mount Vernon, Washington 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Skagit County, Washington, as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2009, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated September 10, 2010. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and 
therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material 
weaknesses have been identified.  However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Audit Findings and Responses, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.   
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the County's financial statements will not be 
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prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  We consider the deficiencies described 
in the accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and Responses as Finding 3 to be material 
weaknesses. 
 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the County’s compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
The County’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Audit Findings and Responses.  We did not audit the County’s response and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Board of 
Commissioners, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities.  However, this report is a 
matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.  It also serves to disseminate 
information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations. 
 

 
BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM 
STATE AUDITOR 
 
September 10, 2010 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance 

with Requirements Applicable to each Major 

Program and Internal Control over Compliance 

in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 

 
Skagit County 

January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 
 
 
Board of Commissioners 
Skagit County 
Mount Vernon, Washington 
 
 
COMPLIANCE 
 
We have audited the compliance of Skagit County, Washington, with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2009.  The County’s major federal programs are identified in the Federal 
Summary.  Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s management.  Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to the financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the County’s 
compliance with those requirements.  
 
In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to 
above that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2009. 
However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with 
those requirements which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 
and which are described in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs as Findings 1 and 2. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
 
The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable 
to federal programs.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal 
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
County's internal control over compliance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there 
can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have 
been identified.  However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a  type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs as 
Findings 1 and 2 to be material weaknesses. 
 
The County's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs.  We did not audit the County's 
responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of Commissioners, federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities.  However, this report is a matter of public record 
and its distribution is not limited.  It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a 
reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations. 
 

 
BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM 
STATE AUDITOR 
 
September 10, 2010 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial 

Statements  
 

Skagit County 
January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 

 
 
Board of Commissioners 
Skagit County 
Mount Vernon, Washington 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Skagit County, Washington, as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2009, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial 
statements as listed on page 24.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
County’s management.  Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements 
based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of Skagit County, as of December 31, 2009, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the General, Mental Health and County Road funds, for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report on our 
consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
 
The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 25 through 36 is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental 
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Accounting Standards Board.  We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation 
of the required supplementary information.  However, we did not audit the information and 
express no opinion on it.  
 
Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations.  This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 

 
BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM 
STATE AUDITOR 
 
September 10, 2010 
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Financial Section 

 
Skagit County 

January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009 
 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2009 
 
 

BASICFINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Statement of Net Assets – 2009 
Statement of Activities – 2009 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds – 2009 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets 

– 2009 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Governmental 

Funds – 2009 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 

Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities – 2009 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual 

– General Fund – 2009 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual 

– Mental Health Fund – 2009 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual 

– County Road Fund – 2009 
Statement of Net Assets – Proprietary Funds – 2009 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets – Proprietary Funds – 

2009 
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds – 2009 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets – Fiduciary Funds – 2009 
Notes to Financial Statements – 2009 

 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2009 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2009 
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Skagit County, Washington 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2009 
 
 

 

This discussion and analysis provides a narrative overview of Skagit County's financial activities 
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. It should be considered in conjunction with 
information contained in the financial statements and in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  
 
 As of December 31, 2009, total assets of the County exceeded total liabilities by $411.2 

million (net assets). Net assets invested in capital assets (net of depreciation and related 
debt) account for 90% of this amount, at $370 million. Of the remaining net assets, $24.7 
million was restricted for specific purposes and $16.8 million was unrestricted.  

 
 Ending net assets for governmental activities was $408.7 million. Of that amount, $369.4 

million was invested in capital assets, $24.8 million was restricted, and $14.5 million was 
unrestricted. 

 
 Ending fund balance for the General Fund was $6.60 million, a decrease of $1.42 million 

over the previous year.   
 
 Ending fund balance for the County Road fund was $9.8 million, a decrease of $3.1 

million over the previous year.  
 
 Total long-term liabilities of the County were $29.4 million at December 31, 2009. 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
The basic financial statements include the government-wide financial statements, the fund 
financial statements, and the notes to the financial statements.  
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
These statements include the statement of net assets and the statement of activities. They 
provide an integrated picture of the County’s financial information as a whole, and are presented 
on the full accrual basis of accounting, a methodology similar to that used by private-sector 
businesses. Revenues and expenses are recognized when earned or incurred, regardless of 
the timing of the receipts or payments. These statements distinguish between functions of 
government that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (referred to 
as "governmental activities") and functions that are intended to recover all or a significant 
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (referred to as "business-type activities"). 
The governmental activities of Skagit County include law enforcement and public safety; the 
superior, juvenile, and district court systems; legal prosecution and indigent defense; jails and 
corrections; road construction and maintenance; planning and community development; parks 
and open space preservation; and care and welfare of the disadvantaged and mentally ill. Other 
general government services provided include elections, property assessment, tax collection, 
and the issuance of licenses. The business-type activities of Skagit County include solid waste 
disposal and a drainage utility.   
 
The statement of net assets presents all of Skagit County’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, changes in net assets may serve 
as an indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. Non-
financial indicators, such as the condition of infrastructure systems or changes in tax base, 
should also be considered in evaluating financial stability. 
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Skagit County, Washington 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2009 
 
 

 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets 
changed during the year. It separates program revenue (generated by specific programs 
through charges for services, grants, and contributions) from general revenue (from taxes and 
other sources not generated by a particular program), showing to what extent each program 
relies on general revenues for funding.  
 
The financial statements also include information for The Emergency Medical Services 
Commission and The Central Valley Ambulance Authority, component units of Skagit County. 
The component units are not covered in this discussion. Additional information concerning these 
entities may be found in Note I of the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
Skagit County uses fund accounting to control and manage monies for specific purposes. Some 
funds may be mandated by state law or by other legal requirements.   
 
Governmental Funds 
 
Most general government services are accounted for in the governmental funds, using the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. This method focuses on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources and on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. This perspective is narrower than that reflected in the government-wide financial 
statements, which focuses on a more long-term view. Reconciliation statements are provided 
which detail the differences between governmental activities in the government-wide statements 
and the information presented in the fund financial statements for the governmental funds. 
      
Skagit County’s major funds - the General Fund, the Mental Health Fund, the County Road 
Fund, and the Facility Improvement Fund - are presented separately in the fund statements. 
Data for the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated column.  
 
Proprietary Funds   
 
Proprietary funds, which include enterprise and internal service funds, use the full accrual 
method of accounting and are used to account for functions which are intended to be self 
supporting by their rates and fees. Skagit County has two enterprise funds - solid waste and a 
drainage utility. Internal service funds are used to account for the County’s vehicle fleet, medical 
and unemployment insurance, computer systems, and other administrative services.   
 
Fiduciary Funds   
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. They are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because those 
funds are not available for use by Skagit County.   
 
Notes to the Financial Statements  
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  
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Skagit County, Washington 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2009 
 
 

 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Statement of Net Assets 
 
Summarized information from the statement of net assets, as compared to the prior year, is as 
follows: 
 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 % Change

ASSETS

Current and Other Assets $63,074,590 $70,637,084 $5,806,918 $6,027,740 $68,881,508 $76,664,824 -10.15%

Capital Assets and 
Construction in Progress (Net of 
Depreciation) 379,005,797       359,114,590       5,672,885          5,025,920          384,678,682       364,140,510       5.64%

Total Assets 442,080,387       429,751,674       11,479,803         11,053,660         453,560,190       440,805,334       2.89%

LIABILITIES

Long-Term Liabilities 21,396,028         21,984,854         7,973,340          9,133,798          29,369,368         31,118,652         -5.62%

Other Liabilities 11,977,566         10,845,518         620,901             450,312             12,598,467         11,295,830         11.53%

Total Liabilities 33,373,594         32,830,372         8,594,241          9,584,110          41,967,835         42,414,482         -1.05%

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of 
Related Debt 369,397,842       348,749,188       592,025             1,183,845          369,989,867       349,933,033       5.73%

Restricted 24,794,518         33,205,192         -                         -                         24,794,518         33,205,192         -25.33%

Unrestricted 14,514,433         14,966,923         2,293,537          285,705             16,807,970         15,252,628         10.20%

Total Net Assets $408,706,793 $396,921,302 $2,885,562 $1,469,550 $411,592,355 $398,390,852 3.31%

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

 
 
Of the $68 million in current and other assets at December 31, 2009, $52.5 million is cash, cash 
equivalents and investments. A very small portion of this amount, $1.15 million, is restricted for 
specific purposes. Accounts receivable and amounts due from other governments total $10.2 
million. Inventories/prepayments total $5.8 million. The remaining $0.4 million is deferred 
charges. Cash, cash equivalents and investments represented 79.1% (compared to 79% in 
2008), while accounts receivable and amounts due from other governments accounted for 
15.7% (compared to 13.3% from 2008).  
 
At December 31, 2009, the County had outstanding long-term liabilities of $29.4 million. Of this 
total, $2.2 million was due within one year. See Note V of the notes to the financial statements 
for more information regarding long-term debt. Other liabilities amounted to $12.6 million. These 
represent primarily accounts payable and accrued liabilities due as a result of ordinary 
operations.  
 
The largest portion of the County’s net assets (90%) reflects its investment in capital assets, 
less any outstanding related debt used to acquire those assets. The County's capital assets are 
used to provide services to citizens and are therefore not available to finance future spending. 
Although the County’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since 
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. In addition, 6.% of the 
County's net assets are subject to legal restrictions for specific purposes. The remaining 
balance of net assets, $16.8 million (4%), is unrestricted and may be used to finance ongoing 
general operations of the County. 
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Skagit County, Washington 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2009 
 
 

 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
 
The County’s total net assets increased by $13.2 million in 2009. Governmental activities 
reflected an increase of $11.8 million while the net assets of business-type activities increased 
$1.4 million. Key elements in these changes are shown in the following table: 
 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
REVENUES

Program Revenues

Charges for Services $27,375,705 $30,973,324 $9,562,051 $9,884,404 $36,937,756 $40,857,728

Operating Grants and Contributions 11,271,785        9,659,021          485,717             266,239             11,757,502        9,925,260          

Capital Grants and Contributions 3,384,760          1,496,744          -                         -                                    3,384,760            1,496,744 

General Revenues

Taxes 55,387,884        57,778,709        -                         -                         55,387,884        57,778,709        

Interest Earnings on Investments 1,432,797          3,040,686          44,502               138,581             1,477,299          3,179,267          

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets (59,262)              (82,021)              -                         -                         (59,262)              (82,021)              

Total Revenues 98,793,669        102,866,463      10,092,270        10,289,224        108,885,939      113,155,687      

PROGRAM EXPENSES

General Government 32,293,073        34,187,307        -                         -                         32,293,073        34,187,307        

Judicial 6,786,074          6,385,303          -                         -                         6,786,074          6,385,303          

Public Safety 24,713,361        22,665,563        -                         -                         24,713,361        22,665,563        

Physical Environment 2,185,797          3,008,208          -                         -                         2,185,797          3,008,208          

Transportation 27,080,176        28,136,224        -                         -                         27,080,176        28,136,224        

Economic Environment 5,348,995          5,947,702          -                         -                         5,348,995          5,947,702          

Health and Human Services 11,340,490        12,606,481        -                         -                         11,340,490        12,606,481        

Culture and Recreation 2,573,312          2,782,984          -                         -                         2,573,312          2,782,984          

Solid Waste -                         -                         7,723,823          8,216,764          7,723,823          8,216,764          

Drainage Utility -                         -                         1,626,049          905,641             1,626,049          905,641             

Interest on Long Term Debt 660,210             687,761             -                         -                         660,210             687,761             

Total Expenses 112,981,488      116,407,533      9,349,872          9,122,405          122,331,360      125,529,939      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures before 
transfers (14,187,819)       (13,541,070)       742,398             1,166,819          (13,445,421)       (12,374,251)       

Transfers (83,945)              154,075             83,945               (154,075)            -                         0                        

Change in Net Assets (14,271,764)       (13,386,995)       826,343             1,012,744          (13,445,421)       (12,374,251)       

Net Assets, January 1 396,921,942      407,580,224      1,469,550          2,128,105          398,391,492      409,708,329      

Prior Period Adjustment 26,056,615        2,728,073          589,669             (1,671,299)         26,646,284        1,056,774          

Net Assets, January 1 - Restated 422,978,557      410,308,297      2,059,219          456,806             425,037,776      410,765,103      

Net Assets, December 31 408,706,793      $396,921,302 $2,885,562 $1,469,550 $411,592,355 $398,390,852

Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities

Total

 
 
Total revenues were $108 million in 2009, a decrease of $4.3 million from 2008. Governmental 
activities provided $99 million (90.%), while business-type activities added $10.1 million. Within 
governmental activities, tax revenue accounted for 51% of total revenue sources (the same as 
in 2008), with grants and contributions accounting for 10.8% (up from 8.8% in 2008). 
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Skagit County, Washington 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
December 31, 2009 
 
 

 

Charges for services accounted for 95% of the revenues of business type activities, with the 
remaining provided by grants and interest income. 
 
Total expenses for the year amounted to $122.3 million, a decrease of $3.2 million from 2008. 
Governmental activities accounted for $113 million (92.4%), with the largest program expenses 
in the areas of general government, transportation, and public safety. These three programs 
accounted for 74% of total governmental expenses. Of the $9.3 million in business-type 
expenses, 83.3% is associated with the solid waste program, a 7.46% decrease from 2008.  
 
The following graph illustrates 2009 government wide program spending: 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY'S FUNDS 
 
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet Analysis 
 
The General Fund, Mental Health Fund, County Road Fund, and Facility Improvement Fund are 
the County’s major funds in 2009.  Together these funds account for 59.9% of total 
governmental fund assets and 50.6% of total governmental fund balances. 
 
 As of December 31, 2009, the County’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances 
of $35.7 million, a decrease from $45 million in 2008. Of this amount, $29 million (82%) is 
unreserved and available for spending within the designated funds. Reserved fund balance of 
$6.5 million is not available for new spending because it has already been committed for 
prepaid expenses, loans, debt service, and inventory.  
 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of Skagit County. The unreserved fund balance 
of this fund decreased from $7.7 million at December 31, 2008, to $4.4 million at December 31, 
2009. Total fund balance decreased from $8 million to $6.60 million. Total assets of the General 
Fund were $13.4 million at December 31, 2009, accounting for 25.4% of total governmental 
fund assets. This represents a decrease of $.3 million from 2008. 
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Governmental Funds Revenue/Expenditure Analysis 
 
Total revenues for governmental funds were $96.7 million in 2009. This represents a decrease 
of $4.9 million from 2008, which is due primarily to decreased revenues in Other Governmental 
Funds. During the same period, total expenditures decreased $3.4 million. This decrease is 
reflected primarily in the Facility Improvement Fund and the non-major governmental funds.  
The General Fund and the County Road fund account for 69.1% of all governmental fund 
revenue (up from 67.4% in 2008) and 61.1% of all expenditures (down from 56.8% in 2008).  
 
The net change in fund balance for the General Fund in 2009 was a negative $1.4 million. The 
decrease in fund balance for the County Road fund was $3.1 million. Fund balance for the 
Mental Health Fund decreased $.2 million. The decrease of $2.2 million in fund balance for the 
Facility Improvement Fund was due to the expenditure of previous years’ revenues and debt 
proceeds to construct or purchase capital facilities that continued from 2008 into 2009. The non-
major governmental funds had an overall negative change in fund balances of $2.18 million for 
2009. 
 
Enterprise Funds Net Assets Analysis 
 
Both enterprise funds of Skagit County, the Solid Waste Fund and the Drainage Utility Fund, are 
considered major funds for 2009. Comparative information from the proprietary funds’ statement 
of net assets is as follows: 
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2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $2,147,954 $2,513,958 $2,792,567 $2,572,982 $4,940,521 $5,086,940

Other Current Assets 800,641             928,856             66,788               64,527               867,429             993,383             

Total Current Assets 2,948,595          3,442,814          2,859,355          2,637,509          5,807,950          6,080,323          

Non-Current Assets

Construction in Progress -                         -                         512,318             564,293             512,318             564,293             

Capital Assets 3,934,268          3,004,140          4,960,191          4,641,671          8,894,459          7,645,811          

Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,749,960)         (2,367,045)         (983,932)            (817,139)            (3,733,892)         (3,184,184)         

Unamortized Debt Issue Costs 16,193               20,241               -                         -                         16,193               20,241               

Total Non-Current Assets 1,200,501          657,336             4,488,577          4,388,825          5,689,078          5,046,161          

Total Assets 4,149,096          4,100,150          7,347,932          7,026,334          11,497,028        11,126,484        

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts/Vouchers Payable 457,557             325,995             49,534               24,276               507,091             350,271             
Other Current Liabilities 1,209,460          1,242,316          37,191               16,165               1,246,651          1,258,481          

Total Current Liabilities 1,667,017          1,568,311          86,725               40,441               1,753,742          1,608,752          

Non-Current Liabilities

Bonds Payable 2,381,851          3,127,314          -                         -                         2,381,851          3,127,314          

Other Non-Current Liabilities 4,453,679          4,908,439          22,194               12,429               4,475,873          4,920,868          

Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,835,530          8,035,753          22,194               12,429               6,857,724          8,048,182          

Total Liabilities 8,502,547          9,604,064          108,919             52,870               8,611,466          9,656,934          

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of 
Related Debt (3,896,553)         (3,204,980)         4,488,578          4,388,825          592,025             1,183,845          

Unrestricted (456,898)            (2,298,935)         2,750,435          2,584,640          2,293,537          285,705             

Total Net Assets ($4,353,451) ($5,503,915) $7,239,013 $6,973,465 $2,885,562 $1,469,550

Net Assets

Solid Waste Drainage Utility Total

 
 
As of December 31, 2009, the enterprise funds reported combined net assets of $2.8 million 
(compared to $1.5 million in 2008). This is the total of a $4.3 million deficit in the Solid Waste 
Fund (down from $5.5 million in 2008) and a positive $7.2 million in the Drainage Utility Fund 
(up from $7 million in 2008). The Solid Waste Fund reports an investment in capital assets, net 
of related debt, of a negative $3.9 million. This is due to the closure and demolition of the 
incinerator in 1994 and 2000 respectively, with the underlying debt remaining as a liability of the 
fund.  
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Enterprise Funds Revenue/Expenditure Analysis 
 
The following table provides comparative information related to revenues, expenses and net 
changes in fund balance for the enterprise funds: 
 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

REVENUES

Charges for Services $7,967,277 $8,522,775 $1,752,705 $1,352,795 $9,719,982 $9,875,570

Intergovernmental 451,792             231,011             33,925               35,228               485,717             266,239             

Interest Revenue 23,528               71,304               20,974               67,277               44,502               138,581             

Miscellaneous Revenue 6,148                 8,591                 48                      243                    6,196                 8,834                 

Total Revenues 8,448,745          8,833,681          1,807,652          1,455,543          10,256,397        10,289,224        

EXPENSES

Personal Services 1,628,668          1,540,255          532,106             471,169             2,160,774          2,011,424          

Contractual Services 4,730,938          4,939,183          -                         -                         4,730,938          4,939,183          

Other Supplies and Expenses 1,321,763          1,522,461          927,151             314,044             2,248,914          1,836,505          

Depreciation 42,454               28,980               166,792             120,428             209,246             149,408             

Loss on Disposition of Capital Assets -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Interest Expense 164,127             185,885             -                         -                         164,127             185,885             
Total Expenses 7,887,950          8,216,764          1,626,049          905,641             9,513,999          9,122,405          

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 560,795             616,917             181,603             549,902             742,398             1,166,819          

Capital Contributions -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Interfund Transfers -                         (24,431)              83,945               (129,644)            83,945               (154,075)            

Change in Net Assets 560,795             592,486             265,548             420,258             826,343             1,012,744          

Net Assets, January 1 (5,503,915)         (4,425,102)         6,973,465          6,553,207          1,469,550          2,128,105          

Prior Period Adjustment 589,669             (1,671,299)         -                         -                         589,669             (1,671,299)         

Net Assets, January 1 - Restated (4,914,246)         (6,096,401)         6,973,465          6,553,207          2,059,219          456,806             

Net Assets, December 31 ($4,353,451) ($5,503,915) $7,239,013 $6,973,465 2,885,562          $1,469,550

Changes in Net Assets

Solid Waste Drainage Utility Total

 
 
Revenues from the Solid Waste Fund represent 86.9% of the total revenues for enterprise funds 
in 2009, an increase from 85.8% in 2008. Total expenses for the funds were 92.5% of revenues, 
an increase from 88.6% in 2008.  
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The following schedule provides a comparative analysis of the original and final amended 
General Fund budget:  
 

Variance

Original Final Favorable

Budget Budget (Unfavorable)

BUDGETED FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 2,901,137$        5,822,524$        $2,921,387

RESOURCES (IN-FLOWS)

Taxes 31,813,992        30,988,992        (825,000)            

Licenses & Permits 22,500               22,500               -                         

Intergovernmental Revenue 8,170,850          8,409,268          238,418             

Charges for Goods and Services 5,008,659          5,051,929          43,270               

Fines and Forfeits 2,177,600          2,177,600          -                         

Interest Revenue 1,599,000          1,179,000          (420,000)            

Miscellaneous Revenues 339,281             431,860             92,579               

Transfers In 291,450             318,843             27,393               

Total Resources (in-flows) 49,423,332        48,579,992        (843,340)            

Amounts Available for Appropriation 52,324,469        54,402,516        2,078,047          

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUT-FLOWS)

General Government Services 17,796,258        17,284,723        511,535             

Judicial 7,674,578          8,169,905          (495,327)            

Public Safety 17,978,153        19,670,046        (1,691,893)         

Utilities and Environment 351,189             441,169             (89,980)              

Economic Environment 189,181             191,156             (1,975)                

Health and Human Services 4,000                 4,000                 -                         

Culture and Recreation 442,586             444,904             (2,318)                

Debt Service 56,667               56,667               -                         

Capital Expenditures 31,000               65,500               (34,500)              

Transfers Out 4,899,720          4,057,877          841,843             

Amount Charged to Appropriations (out-flows) 49,423,332        50,385,947        (962,615)            

BUDGETED FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $2,901,137 $4,016,569 $1,115,432

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009
General Fund Budget Comparison
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The net increase in revenues in the final amended budget represented a favorable variance of 
1.7%. The net increase in expenditures represented an unfavorable increase of 1.9%. Total 
budgeted expenditures increased only slightly more than revenue increased, a difference of 
$119 thousand.  
 
The final budget appropriation for general government services reflected an increase primarily 
due to the settlement of labor contracts with employees in Law Enforcement and establishing a 
budget for an extraordinary murder case that was handled by the County’s Office of Public 
Defense.  Decreases in revenue projections for Sale of Timber/State Land and Sales & Use Tax 
due to the downturn in the economy prompted reductions to Transfers Out.  
 
The following schedule provides an analysis of the final amended budget as compared to actual 
General Fund revenues and expenditures: 
  

Changes

Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 5,822,524$        8,027,031$        $2,204,507

RESOURCES (IN-FLOWS)

Taxes 30,988,992 30,119,983 (869,009)

Licenses & Permits 22,500 23,948 1,448

Intergovernmental Revenue 8,409,268 8,598,502 189,234

Charges for Goods and Services 5,051,929 4,968,045 (83,884)

Fines and Forfeits 2,177,600 1,870,997 (306,603)

Interest Revenue 1,179,000 1,046,208 (132,792)

Miscellaneous Revenues 431,860 472,912 41,052

Transfers In 318,843 237,287 (81,556)

Total Resources (in-flows) 48,579,992 47,337,883 (1,242,110)

Amounts Available for Appropriation 54,402,516 55,364,914 962,397

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUT-FLOWS)

General Government Services 17,284,723 16,495,424 789,299

Judicial 8,169,905 7,841,920 327,985

Public Safety 19,670,046 19,282,801 387,245

Utilities and Environment 441,169 370,461 70,708

Economic Environment 191,156 185,150 6,006

Health and Human Services 4,000 2,125 1,875

Culture and Recreation 444,904 434,887 10,017

Debt Service 56,667               57,473 (806)

Capitalized Expenditures 65,500 28,784 36,716

Transfers Out 4,057,877 4,057,877 0

Amount Charged to Appropriations (out-flows) 50,385,947 48,756,902 1,629,045

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $4,016,569 $6,608,012 $2,591,442

General Fund Budget vs. Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009
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The largest dollar variances are reflected in tax revenues and fines and forfeits, which 
decreased due to the economic downturn. Revenues received from the State of Washington 
were higher than projected, resulting in a favorable variance in intergovernmental revenues.  
Actual interest revenues were lower due to decreased interest rates.     
 
Actual expenditures were 3.3% less than budgeted. This is represented primarily by a decrease 
in General Government Services and overall decreases in all areas except Debt Service and 
Transfers Out.  The most significant variance is in General Government Services; this reflects a 
contingency line item that was not spent and salary and benefit savings due to position 
eliminations.       
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG TERM DEBT 
 
Capital Assets  
 
The County’s net capital assets were $383.1 million at December 31, 2009. Construction in 
progress was an additional $1.1 million. Capital assets include land, development rights, 
buildings, improvements, furniture and equipment, and infrastructure. Details of 2009 capital 
asset transactions are presented in Note IV.D of the notes to the financial statements.   
 
During 2009 the County continued construction and remodeling of real property for County use.  
Ongoing projects include an addition to County administrative offices, design of a new jail 
facility, recreation center improvements, and courthouse masonry restoration. 
 
Long-Term Debt  
 
At December 31, 2009, general obligation bonds payable as reported by governmental activities 
was $14.655 million. This represents a $.87 million decrease from the prior year. Business type 
activities reported general obligation bonds payable of $3.23 million, a decrease of $.73 million.  
 
The County's remaining legal capacity for non-voted debt at December 31, 2009 was 
approximately $229 million.  
 
Additional information relating to long-term debt can be found in Note V of the notes to the 
financial statements.  
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS 
 
The Skagit County economy continued to feel the impacts of a global downturn. According to 
the Washington State Employment Security Department, the number of unemployed individuals 
in the County increased to 9.4%, up from 6.9% a year ago.  Sales tax collections for 2009, 
which accounted for approximately 14.8% of the County’s General Fund budget, were down 
13.6% from the collections in 2008. 
 
The County’s overall financial position remains stead even though unrestricted net assets for 
governmental activities have decreased by 3.02% compared to 2008. The County is not facing 
any foreseeable restrictions or other limitations that would significantly impact funding resources 
for future uses. 
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There have been a series of voter initiatives over the last several years, as well as State of 
Washington, Local and Federal legal changes that continue to have an impact on future 
finances of the County. A listing of conditions and decisions that may significantly affect the 
future financial condition of the County follows: 
 
 In November 1999, the voters in Washington approved Initiative 695, which eliminated the 

annual motor vehicle excise tax and replaced it with a $30 annual fee on motor vehicles. 
Although this initiative was later ruled unconstitutional by the courts, the Legislature moved 
to enact the $30 annual fee in special session. As a result, a portion of funding the County 
received from the State for 2000 through 2002 was reduced by approximately $2.7 million. 
The County received partial funding of approximately $1.7 million over the same time period. 

 
 Voters also approved Initiative 747, which capped property tax growth each year at a 

maximum of 1%, plus any additions for new construction. I-747 was required to be fully 
implemented beginning with 2002. 

 
 In April of 2003, the voters approved a 1/10th of 1% increase in sales tax to fund emergency 

communication systems and facilities. 
 
 In December 2005, the Board of County Commissioners signed an Ordinance implementing 

a 1/10th of 1% increase in sales and use tax for the purpose of providing funds for new and 
expanded chemical dependency or mental health treatment services and for the operation of 
new or expanded therapeutic court programs. 

 
 In December 2005, the Board of County Commissioners signed a resolution creating the 

Skagit County Clean Water (Shellfish Protection) District. While assessments were 
authorized at this time, collection didn’t begin until the 2007 tax year. The assessment was 
authorized for 3 years. 

 
 In December 2009, the Board of County Commissioners signed a resolution authorizing a 

shift in the Road Levy in the amount of $1,000,000 to the General Levy. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to either of the following: 
 

Tim Holloran, County Administrator  Accounting Department 
County Commissioner’s Office  Skagit County Auditor’s Office 
1800 Continental Place, Suite 100  PO Box 1306 
Mount Vernon, WA 98273   Mount Vernon, WA 98273 
360-336-9300     360-336-9420 
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Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total EMS CVA

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 27,840,571$         4,940,521$           32,781,092$         57,807$        219,096$      
Investments 18,595,318 -                            18,595,318           1,986,855 0
Accounts Receivables, Net 4,001,295 792,925 4,794,220             686,060
Due from Other Governments 5,389,798 23,890 5,413,688             920,000        525,310        
Internal Balances 17,225 (17,225) -                        -                   -                   
Inventories and Prepayments 5,733,418 50,614 5,784,032             -                   -                   
Deferred Charges 344,087 16,193 360,280                700               -                   
Restricted Assets: -                        

Restricted for Debt Service: -                        
Cash/Cash Equivalents 25,472 -                            25,472                  -                   -                   
Investments 1,127,406 -                            1,127,406             -                   -                   

Non Depreciated Capital Assets, Net 29,265,166 793,060                30,058,226           
Capital Assets, Net 349,110,817 4,367,507 353,478,324         511,819 394,885
Construction in Progress 629,814 512,318 1,142,132             -                   -                   

Total Assets 442,080,387         11,479,803           453,560,190         3,477,181     1,825,351     

LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 5,835,367             507,091                6,342,458             9,028            48,248          
Other Liabilities 4,821,181 113,810 4,934,991             20,652          -                   
Due to Other Governments 1,321,018 -                            1,321,018             268,559        10,027          
Long Term Liabilities: -                            

Due within One Year 1,115,041 1,115,616 2,230,657             27,761          -                   
Due in More Than One Year 20,280,987 6,857,724 27,138,711           262,655        317,027        
Total Liabilities 33,373,594           8,594,241             41,967,835           588,655        375,302        

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 369,397,842         592,025                369,989,867         511,819        394,885        
Restricted for:

General Government 4,575,260 -                            4,575,260 -                   -                   
Public Safety 927,212 -                            927,212 -                   -                   
Physical Environment 1,743,577 -                            1,743,577 -                   -                   
Transportation 9,759,391 -                            9,759,391 -                   -                   
Economic Environment 1,336,270 -                            1,336,270 -                   -                   
Health & Human Services 4,885,786 -                            4,885,786 -                   -                   
Culture and Recreation 417,144 -                            417,144 -                   -                   
Debt Service 1,149,878 -                            1,149,878 -                   -                   

Unrestricted 14,514,433 2,293,537 16,807,970 2,376,707     1,055,164     
Total Net Assets 408,706,793$       2,885,562$           411,592,355$       2,888,526$   1,450,049$   

Primary Government
Component Units

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                              Washington State Auditor's Office 
                                                                                                       37



SK
AG

IT
 C

O
U

N
TY

, W
AS

H
IN

G
TO

N
St

at
em

en
t o

f A
ct

iv
iti

es
Fo

r t
he

 Y
ea

r E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9

   
   

   
   

Se
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

O
pe

ra
tin

g
C

ap
ita

l
C

ha
rg

es
 fo

r
G

ra
nt

s 
an

d
G

ra
nt

s 
an

d
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

B
us

in
es

s-
Ty

pe
Fu

nc
tio

ns
/P

ro
gr

am
s

Ex
pe

ns
es

Se
rv

ic
es

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

A
ct

iv
iti

es
A

ct
iv

iti
es

To
ta

l
EM

S
C

VA
Pr

im
ar

y 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t:
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l A

ct
iv

iti
es

:
G

en
er

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t
32

,2
93

,0
73

$ 
   

   
7,

88
8,

91
0

$ 
   

   
1,

38
1,

18
8

$ 
   

   
82

4,
14

6
$ 

   
   

   
(2

2,
19

8,
82

9)
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
2,

19
8,

82
9)

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

Ju
di

ci
al

6,
78

6,
07

4
3,

93
1,

87
4

   
   

   
42

1,
85

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
,4

32
,3

50
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,4
32

,3
50

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y

24
,7

13
,3

61
3,

57
7,

90
4

3,
54

1,
58

6
96

,9
82

(1
7,

49
6,

88
9)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

7,
49

6,
88

9)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
P

hy
si

ca
l E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
2,

18
5,

79
7

89
,2

53
1,

45
4,

39
3

12
6,

43
8

   
   

   
   

(5
15

,7
13

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(5
15

,7
13

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n

27
,0

80
,1

76
6,

18
8,

79
9

1,
28

0,
44

0
2,

03
5,

34
5

(1
7,

57
5,

59
2)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

7,
57

5,
59

2)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
E

co
no

m
ic

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

5,
34

8,
99

5
1,

42
4,

78
0

1,
03

2,
39

3
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
,8

91
,8

22
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,8
91

,8
22

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 H
um

an
 S

er
vi

ce
s

11
,3

40
,4

90
3,

55
5,

10
3

1,
96

8,
58

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(5
,8

16
,8

07
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(5

,8
16

,8
07

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
2,

57
3,

31
2

71
9,

08
2

19
1,

35
5

30
1,

84
9

(1
,3

61
,0

26
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,3
61

,0
26

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
In

te
re

st
 o

n 
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

 D
eb

t
66

0,
21

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(6

60
,2

10
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(6

60
,2

10
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l  G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
11

2,
98

1,
48

8
   

   
 

27
,3

75
,7

05
   

   
 

11
,2

71
,7

85
   

   
 

3,
38

4,
76

0
   

   
   

(7
0,

94
9,

23
8)

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(7

0,
94

9,
23

8)
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

B
us

in
es

s-
Ty

pe
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

S
ol

id
 W

as
te

7,
72

3,
82

3
   

   
   

  
7,

80
9,

29
8

   
   

   
45

1,
79

2
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
53

7,
26

7
   

   
   

   
53

7,
26

7
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
D

ra
in

ag
e 

U
til

ity
1,

62
6,

04
9

1,
75

2,
75

3
33

,9
25

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
0,

62
9

16
0,

62
9

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l B
us

in
es

s-
Ty

pe
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

9,
34

9,
87

2
   

   
   

  
9,

56
2,

05
1

   
   

   
48

5,
71

7
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
69

7,
89

6
   

   
   

   
69

7,
89

6
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

To
ta

l P
rim

ar
y 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

12
2,

33
1,

36
0

   
   

 
36

,9
37

,7
56

   
   

 
11

,7
57

,5
02

   
   

 
3,

38
4,

76
0

   
   

   
(7

0,
94

9,
23

8)
   

   
69

7,
89

6
   

   
   

   
(7

0,
25

1,
34

2)
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

C
om

po
ne

nt
 U

ni
t

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

om
m

is
si

on
3,

86
8,

30
4

1,
50

6,
61

0
3,

44
4,

74
9

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
08

3,
05

5
0

C
en

tra
l V

al
le

y 
A

m
pu

la
nc

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y

2,
38

5,
50

5
2,

70
4,

01
3

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
31

8,
50

8
To

ta
l C

om
po

ne
nt

 U
ni

t
6,

25
3,

80
9

   
   

   
  

4,
21

0,
62

3
   

   
   

3,
44

4,
74

9
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
08

3,
05

5
   

  
31

8,
50

8
   

   
  

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
ue

s
   

   
 T

ax
es

   
   

   
   

  P
ro

pe
rty

38
,0

20
,5

70
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
38

,0
20

,5
70

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
  S

al
es

13
,8

50
,6

62
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
,8

50
,6

62
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

  O
th

er
3,

51
6,

65
2

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

51
6,

65
2

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

47
7,

41
0

   
   

  
   

   
  I

nt
er

es
t a

nd
 In

ve
st

m
en

t E
ar

ni
ng

s
1,

43
2,

79
7

44
,5

02
1,

47
7,

29
9

11
,9

27
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
 G

ai
n 

(L
os

s)
 fr

om
 S

al
e 

of
 C

ap
ita

l A
ss

et
s

(5
9,

26
2)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(5

9,
26

2)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
  T

ra
ns

fe
rs

(8
3,

94
5)

83
,9

45
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
To

ta
l G

en
er

al
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

Tr
an

sf
er

s
56

,6
77

,4
74

   
   

 
12

8,
44

7
   

   
   

   
56

,8
05

,9
21

   
   

 
11

,9
27

   
   

   
 

47
7,

41
0

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
  C

ha
ng

e 
in

 N
et

 A
ss

et
s

(1
4,

27
1,

76
4)

82
6,

34
3

(1
3,

44
5,

42
1)

1,
09

4,
98

2
79

5,
91

8

N
et

 A
ss

et
s,

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
39

6,
92

1,
94

2
1,

46
9,

55
0

39
8,

39
1,

49
2

1,
71

9,
62

5
65

4,
13

1
P

rio
r P

er
io

d 
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
26

,0
56

,6
15

58
9,

66
9

26
,6

46
,2

84
73

,9
19

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 A
ss

et
s,

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, a

s 
R

es
ta

te
d

42
2,

97
8,

55
7

2,
05

9,
21

9
42

5,
03

7,
77

6
1,

79
3,

54
4

65
4,

13
1

N
et

 A
ss

et
s,

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1

40
8,

70
6,

79
3

$ 
  

2,
88

5,
56

2
$ 

   
   

41
1,

59
2,

35
5

$ 
  

2,
88

8,
52

6
$ 

  
1,

45
0,

04
9

$ 
  

C
om

po
ne

nt
 U

ni
ts

Pr
im

ar
y 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

Pr
og

ra
m

 R
ev

en
ue

s
N

et
 (E

xp
en

se
s)

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
an

d 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 N
et

 A
ss

et
s

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                              Washington State Auditor's Office 
                                                                                                       38



SK
AG

IT
 C

O
U

N
TY

, W
AS

H
IN

G
TO

N
B

al
an

ce
 S

he
et

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l F
un

ds
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9

   
   

   
   

Se
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

  
M

en
ta

l 
C

ou
nt

y
Fa

ci
lit

y 
O

th
er

G
en

er
al

H
ea

lth
 

R
oa

d
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

AS
SE

TS
Fu

nd
Fu

nd
Fu

nd
Fu

nd
Fu

nd
s

To
ta

l
C

as
h 

an
d 

C
as

h 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

s
6,

12
9,

17
8

$ 
   

  
1,

30
9,

22
0

$ 
   

  
65

5,
08

3
$ 

   
   

  
1,

75
3,

98
2

$ 
   

  
7,

58
4,

46
9

$ 
   

  
17

,4
31

,9
32

$ 
   

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

57
3,

90
5

8,
65

9,
86

9
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
48

8,
95

0
19

,7
22

,7
24

Ta
xe

s 
R

ec
ei

va
bl

e
85

2,
37

3
11

,5
09

37
1,

71
8

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

4,
51

8
1,

47
0,

11
8

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e,

 N
et

2,
01

4,
68

9
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

31
7,

89
1

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

7,
24

6
2,

47
9,

82
6

In
te

re
st

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

43
,8

66
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
43

,8
66

D
ue

 fr
om

 O
th

er
 F

un
ds

25
,9

06
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
50

6
27

,4
12

D
ue

 fr
om

 O
th

er
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ts
1,

85
2,

06
6

38
5,

89
9

82
3,

26
8

13
6,

28
4

   
   

   
  

2,
15

9,
66

7
5,

35
7,

18
4

In
te

rfu
nd

 L
oa

ns
 R

ec
ei

va
bl

e
2,

05
2,

50
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

26
3,

50
0

5,
31

6,
00

0
In

ve
nt

or
ie

s 
an

d 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 

43
6,

87
3

8,
71

5
11

5,
24

3
1,

88
7

19
0,

32
3

75
3,

04
1

   
To

ta
l A

ss
et

s
13

,4
07

,4
51

   
   

5,
28

9,
24

8
   

   
  

10
,9

43
,0

72
   

   
1,

89
2,

15
3

   
   

  
21

,0
70

,1
79

   
   

52
,6

02
,1

03
   

   

LI
AB

IL
IT

IE
S 

AN
D

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

AN
C

ES
Li

ab
ilit

ie
s

Ac
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 V
ou

ch
er

s 
Pa

ya
bl

e
72

3,
59

5
   

   
   

  
20

4,
95

7
   

   
   

  
37

2,
69

1
   

   
   

  
17

,9
48

   
   

   
   

 
1,

07
1,

69
0

   
   

  
2,

39
0,

88
0

   
   

  
D

ue
 to

 O
th

er
 F

un
ds

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
1,

41
3

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
34

,6
50

13
6,

06
3

   
   

   
  

D
ue

 to
 O

th
er

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l U
ni

ts
5,

00
7

   
   

   
   

   
16

4,
30

9
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

15
1,

70
2

1,
32

1,
01

8
Ac

cr
ue

d 
W

ag
es

 P
ay

ab
le

94
7,

60
8

16
,9

01
22

8,
19

2
4,

56
5

27
7,

13
2

1,
47

4,
39

8
Ac

cr
ue

d 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
34

6,
81

0
5,

78
7

92
,0

67
1,

60
5

11
0,

58
0

55
6,

84
9

C
us

to
di

al
 A

cc
ou

nt
s

1,
78

5,
63

2
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
,6

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
9,

73
2

1,
96

2,
96

4
D

ef
er

re
d 

R
ev

en
ue

2,
99

0,
78

7
11

,5
09

37
1,

71
8

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

7,
53

0
3,

68
1,

54
4

In
te

rfu
nd

 L
oa

ns
 P

ay
ab

le
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0,
00

0
29

7,
00

0
5,

29
7,

00
0

   
To

ta
l L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
6,

79
9,

43
9

   
   

  
40

3,
46

3
   

   
   

  
1,

18
3,

68
1

   
   

  
5,

02
4,

11
8

   
   

  
3,

41
0,

01
6

   
   

  
16

,8
20

,7
16

   
   

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

R
es

er
ve

d 
fo

r:
  I

nv
en

to
ry

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
,6

14
   

   
   

   
 

40
,6

14
   

   
   

   
 

  P
re

pa
id

 It
em

s
15

7,
87

2
4,

96
3

45
,2

48
81

3
77

,3
70

   
   

   
   

 
28

6,
26

6
   

   
   

  
  R

es
er

ve
d 

fo
r  

Lo
an

s 
R

ec
ei

va
bl

e
2,

05
2,

50
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
3,

00
0

5,
05

5,
50

0
   

   
  

  D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
14

9,
87

8
1,

14
9,

87
8

   
   

  
U

nr
es

er
ve

d,
 U

nd
es

ig
na

te
d,

 R
ep

or
te

d 
in

:
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

4,
39

7,
64

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
39

7,
64

0
   

   
  

   
Sp

ec
ia

l R
ev

en
ue

 F
un

ds
4,

88
0,

82
3

9,
71

4,
14

3
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,3

72
,0

28
24

,9
66

,9
94

   
   

   
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

 F
un

ds
(3

,1
32

,7
78

)
3,

01
7,

27
3

(1
15

,5
05

)
   

   
   

 
   

To
ta

l F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc

es
6,

60
8,

01
2

   
   

  
4,

88
5,

78
6

   
   

  
9,

75
9,

39
1

   
   

  
(3

,1
31

,9
65

)
   

   
 

17
,6

60
,1

63
   

   
35

,7
81

,3
86

   
   

   
To

ta
l L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
s

13
,4

07
,4

51
$ 

   
5,

28
9,

24
8

$ 
   

  
10

,9
43

,0
72

$ 
   

1,
89

2,
15

3
$ 

   
  

21
,0

70
,1

79
$ 

   
52

,6
02

,1
03

$ 
   

M
aj

or
 F

un
ds

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                              Washington State Auditor's Office 
                                                                                                       39



SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

To the Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2009

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  

Total fund balances as shown on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 35,781,386$     

Net capital assets of governmental funds as of December 31, 2009 370,355,162
  Capital assets used in the activities of governmental funds are not financial resources
  and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Revenues deferred in the governmental funds and recognized as revenue of the current 3,124,155
  period on the statement of activities. 

Net assets of the internal service funds 20,263,598
  Internal service funds are included in governmental activities on the statement of net
  assets.

Balance of long-term liabilities of the governmental funds as of December 31, 2009 (20,817,508)
  Liabilities not due and payable in the current period are not reported in the governmental
  funds.

                                Total net assets as reported on the Statement of Net Assets 408,706,793$   
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Net change in fund balances as shown on the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (9,089,138)$       

Net Capital Asset Activity (6,007,050)
  Purchases of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. On
  the government wide statements they are reported as assets and depreciated over their  
  estimated useful lives.

Net Internal Service Fund Activity (378,608)
  Internal service funds are included in governmental activities on the statement of net assets

Net Long-Term Debt Activity 574,944
  In the governmental funds statements, proceeds of long term debt are considered   
  revenues and debt principal payments are considered expenditures. These transactions are 
  reported as increases and decreases in long-term debt liabilities on the government wide
  statements. 

Net change in deferred revenues and revenues not reportable on the modified accrual basis 628,089
  Revenues are reported on the modified accrual basis for the governmental funds statements
  and on the full accrual basis for the statement of activities.

                                             Change in net assets as reflected in the Statement of Activities (14,271,763)$     
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

 

                                       

                                    

Original Final Actual Variance
Budgeted Fund Balance, January 1 2,901,137$         5,822,524$         8,027,031$         2,204,507$        

Resources (in-flows)
Taxes 31,813,992         30,988,992         30,119,983         (869,009)            
Licenses and Permits 22,500                22,500                23,948                1,448                 
Intergovernmental Revenue 8,170,850           8,409,268           8,598,502           189,234             
Charges for Services 5,008,659           5,051,929           4,968,045           (83,884)              
Fines and Forfeits 2,177,600           2,177,600           1,870,997           (306,603)            
Interest Revenue 1,599,000           1,179,000           1,046,208           (132,792)            
Miscellaneous Revenues 339,281              431,860              472,912              41,052               
Transfers In 291,450              318,843              237,287              (81,556)              
Total Resources (in-flows) 49,423,332         48,579,992         47,337,883         (1,242,110)         

Amounts Available for Appropriation 52,324,469         54,402,516         55,364,914         962,398             

Charges to Appropriations (out-flows)
General Government 17,796,258         17,284,723         16,495,424         789,299             
Judicial 7,674,578           8,169,905           7,841,920           327,985             
Public Safety 17,978,153         19,670,046         19,282,801         387,245             
Physical Environment 351,189              441,169              370,461              70,708               
Economic Environment 189,181              191,156              185,150              6,006                 
Health and Human Services 4,000                  4,000                  2,125                  1,875                 
Culture and Recreation 442,586              444,904              434,887              10,017               
Debt Service 56,667                56,667                57,473                (806)                   
Capital Expenditures 31,000                65,500                28,784                36,716               
Transfers Out 4,899,720           4,057,877           4,057,877           -                         
Amount Charged to Appropriations (out-flows) 49,423,332         50,385,947         48,756,902         1,629,045          

Budgeted Fund Balance, December 31 2,901,137$         4,016,569$         6,608,012$         2,591,443$        

Budgeted Amounts
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

Mental Health Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Original Final Actual Variance
Budgeted Fund Balance, January 1 2,500$                   13,486$                 5,122,056$            

Resources (in-flows)
General Property Taxes 279,997                 279,997                 280,310                 313                        
Sales and Use Taxes 2,454,360              2,454,360              2,110,673              (343,687)                
Other Taxes 2,738                     2,738                     2,097                     (641)                       
Intergovernmental Revenues 194,854                 196,864                 171,199                 (25,665)                  
Charges for Services 1,071,333              1,129,595              943,782                 (185,813)                
Interest Earnings 115,630                 115,630                 29,756                   (85,874)                  
Other Revenue 6                            1,006                     1,000                     (6)                           
Transfers In 5,000                     5,000                     3,940                     (1,060)                    
Total Resources (in-flows) 4,123,918              4,185,190              3,542,757              (642,433)                

Amounts Available for Appropriation 4,126,418              4,198,676              8,664,813              

Charges to Appropriations (out-flows)
Health and Human Services 4,036,141              3,820,582              3,180,492              640,090                 
Transfers Out 380,611                 659,809                 608,354                 51,455                   
Amount Charged to Appropriations (out-flows) 4,416,752              4,480,391              3,788,846              691,545                 

Budgeted Fund Balance, December 31 (290,334)$              (281,715)$              4,875,967$            

Budgeted Amounts
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes to Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

 County Road Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

 

                                       

                                    

Original Final Actual Variance
Budgeted Fund Balance, January 1 2,890,775$            5,112,275$            12,904,396$          

Resources (in-flows)
General Property Taxes 10,267,797            10,267,797            10,392,742            124,945                 
Timber Harvest Taxes 150,000                 150,000                 194,373                 44,373                   
Excise Taxes 35,000                   35,000                   44,068                   9,068                     
Licenses and Permits 84,500                   84,500                   63,979                   (20,521)                  
Intergovernmental Revenues 8,430,801              8,430,801              6,947,010              (1,483,791)             
Charges for Services 4,210,201              4,210,201              1,775,588              (2,434,613)             
Interest Earnings 108,000                 108,000                 143,194                 35,194                   
Other Revenue 23,815                   23,815                   142,031                 118,216                 
Total Resources (in-flows) 23,310,114            23,310,114            19,702,985            (3,607,129)             

Amounts Available for Appropriation 26,200,889            28,422,389            32,607,381            

Charges to Appropriations (out-flows)
General Government 151,393                 151,393                 158,018                 (6,625)                    
Transportation 26,998,657            27,343,101            17,510,953            9,832,148              
Capital Expenditures 328,000                 1,307,500              2,313,403              (1,005,903)             
Transfers Out 236,796                 2,486,796              2,865,616              (378,820)                
Amount Charged to Appropriations (out-flows) 27,714,846            31,288,790            22,847,990            8,440,800              

Budgeted Fund Balance, December 31 (1,513,957)$           (2,866,401)$           9,759,391$            

Budgeted Amounts
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
Statement of Net Assets

 Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2009

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Governmental
Activities
Internal

Solid Drainage Service
ASSETS Waste Utility Total Funds
Current Assets

Cash/Cash Equivalents 2,147,954$     2,792,567$     4,940,521$    10,434,111$    
Accounts Receivable, Net 734,043 58,882 792,925 7,485
Due From Other Funds 0 0 0 1,111,997
Due from Other Governments 23,890 0 23,890 32,614
Inventories/Prepayments 42,708 7,906 50,614 4,980,377
  Total Current Assets 2,948,595       2,859,355       5,807,950      16,566,584       

Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets
   Land 595,379          197,681          793,060         -                        
   Buildings 1,488,591 -                      1,488,591 180,888
   Improvements 1,354,796 4,756,541 6,111,337 -                        
   Machinery and Equipment 495,502 5,969 501,471 16,651,690
     Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,749,960) (983,932) (3,733,892) (8,181,944)
   Construction In Progress -                      512,318 512,318 -                        
Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs 16,193 -                      16,193 -                        
Total Non-Current Assets 1,200,501       4,488,577       5,689,078      8,650,634         

    Total Assets 4,149,096       7,347,932       11,497,028    25,217,218       

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts/Vouchers Payable 457,557          49,534            507,091         3,444,486         
Due to Other Funds 9,199 8,026              17,225           986,122            
Interest Payable 9,664 -                      9,664 -                        
Interfund Loans Payable 19,000
Accrued Wages Payable 52,626 20,502 73,128 119,806
Accrued Employee Benefits 22,355 8,663 31,018 43,975
Accrued Taxes Payable 0 -                      0 0
Other Accrued Liabilities 350,616 -                      350,616 50,000
Bonds Payable 765,000 -                      765,000 -                        
  Total Current Liabilities 1,667,017       86,725            1,753,742      4,663,389         

Non-Current Liabilities
Compensated Absences 64,813            22,194            87,007           $222,936
Post Closure Landfill Costs 3,186,737 -                      3,186,737      -                        
Environmental Liability 1,202,129 -                      1,202,129 67,295
Bonds Payable 2,381,851 -                      2,381,851 -                        
  Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,835,530 22,194 6,857,724 290,231
    Total Liabilities 8,502,547       108,919          8,611,466      4,953,620         

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt (3,896,553)     4,488,578       592,025         8,650,634         
Unrestricted (456,898) 2,750,435 2,293,537 11,612,964
  Total Net Assets (4,353,451)$   7,239,013$     2,885,562$    20,263,598$    

Enterprise Funds
Business-Type Activities
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Governmental
Activities
Internal

Solid Drainage Service
Waste Utility Total Funds

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services 7,967,277$     1,752,705$    9,719,982$    11,228,458$   
Other Operating Revenue -                     -                     -                    10,034,016
     Total Operating Revenues 7,967,277      1,752,705      9,719,982      21,262,474     

Operating Expenses
Personnel Services 1,628,668      532,106         2,160,774      4,563,950       
Contractual Services 4,730,938 -                     4,730,938 1,750,828
Supplies and Expenses 1,321,763 927,151 2,248,914 6,146,479
Depreciation 42,454 166,792 209,246 1,151,238
Payment to Claimants -                     -                     -                    8,137,816
     Total Operating Expenses 7,723,823      1,626,049      9,349,872      21,750,311     

     Operating Income (Loss) 243,454         126,656         370,110         (487,837)         

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Intergovernmental Revenue 451,792         33,925           485,717         -                     
Interest Revenue 23,528 20,974 44,502 27,236
Miscellaneous Revenue 6,148 48 6,196 14,066
Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Capital Assets -                     -                     -                    (103,250)
Interest Expense (164,127) -                     (164,127) -                     
Miscellaneous Expense -                     -                     -                    -                     
    Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 317,341         54,947           372,288         (61,948)           

Income (Loss) before Transfers 560,795         181,603         742,398         (549,785)         
Transfers In -                     98,948           98,948           190,389
Transfers Out -                     (15,003) (15,003) (19,212)

    Change in Net Assets 560,795         265,548         826,343         (378,608)         

Net Assets, January 1 (5,503,915)     6,973,465      1,469,550      19,991,155     
Prior Period Adjustment 589,669 -                     589,669         651,051
Net Assets, January 1, as Restated (4,914,246) 6,973,465 2,059,219 20,642,206
Net Assets, December 31 (4,353,451)$   7,239,013$    2,885,562$    20,263,598$   

Enterprise Funds
Business - Type Activities
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
 Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For  the Year Ended December 31, 2009

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Governmental
Activities
Internal

Solid Drainage Service
Waste Utility Total Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers 7,965,300$    1,724,897$  9,690,197$    1,339,756$   
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided -                     7,686 7,686 18,917,554
Payments to Employees (1,620,448) (508,795) (2,129,243) (4,158,406)
Payments to Suppliers (5,215,973) (652,180) (5,868,153) (6,403,381)
Payments to Claimants -                     -                   -                     (7,875,114)
Payments for Interfund Services Used (1,239,240) (241,687) (1,480,927) (820,371)
Miscellaneous Receipts 6,147 48 6,195 26,165
   Net Cash Provided (Used) (104,214)        329,969       225,755         1,026,203     

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Operating Grants Received 592,457         $51,242 $643,699 (19,212)         
Transfers to Other Funds 83,945 83,945 190,389        
   Net Cash Provided (Used) 592,457         135,187       727,644         171,177        

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capital Grant Received -                     -                   -                     7,859
Purchases of Capital Assets -                     (266,545) (266,545) (1,034,567)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets -                     -                   -                     (95,390)
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (735,000) -                   (735,000) -                    
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (142,775) -                   (142,775) -                    
   Net Cash Provided (Used) (877,775)        (266,545)      (1,144,320)     (1,122,098)    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Sale of Investments -                     -                   -                     -                    
Interest Earnings 23,528 20,974 44,502 27,236
   Net Cash Provided 23,528           20,974         44,502           27,236          

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (366,004) 219,585 (146,419) 102,518

Balance, January 1 2,513,958 2,572,982 5,086,940 10,331,593
Balance, December 31 2,147,954$    2,792,567$  4,940,521$    10,434,111$ 

Business - Type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
 Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Governmental
Activities
Internal

Solid Drainage Service
Waste Utility Total Funds

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) 
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

  Operating Income (Loss) 243,454$      126,656$      370,110$      (487,837)$     

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

  Depreciation Expense 42,454 166,791 209,245 1,151,238
  Miscellaneous Receipts 6,148 48 6,196 (287,712)
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
  Receivables, Net (1,977) (20,122) (22,099) (993,065)
  Prepayments (10,473) 545 (9,928) (5,318)
  Inventories -                    -                    -                    (114,412)
  Accounts and Other Payables (383,820) 56,051 (327,769) 1,763,309

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (104,214)$     329,969$      225,755$      1,026,203$   

Business - Type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
 For the Year Ended December 31,2009

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  

Agency
Funds

ASSETS
Cash 27,112,361$    
Investments 193,868,003
Taxes Receivable 2,220,890
Deposits 10,000
     Total Assets $223,211,254

LIABILITIES
Warrants Payable $21,042,494
Custodial Accounts 202,168,758
     Total Liabilities 223,211,252$  
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Skagit County, Washington 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2009 
 
 

 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial s tatements o f S kagit C ounty hav e been pr epared i n c onformity w ith g enerally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), as applied to government entities. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial r eporting pr inciples. The c hart o f ac counts u sed by  S kagit C ounty 
conforms to t he B udgeting, A ccounting, and Reporting S ystem ( BARS) pr escribed by  t he 
Washington State Office of the State Auditor.  
 
Reporting Entity 
 
Skagit County, a first-class county, was incorporated on November 28, 1883, under the Revised 
Code of  Washington 36.04.390. The C ounty oper ates unde r a c ommissioner form of 
government and  pr ovides such se rvices as  law enf orcement, road c onstruction an d 
maintenance, s olid w aste m anagement, pe rmits and pl anning, pa rks a nd r ecreation, j udicial 
administration, public health, social services and general administrative services. As required by 
GAAP, the financial statements present Skagit County, the primary government, and its 
discretely pr esented c omponent uni ts, the Skagit C ounty E mergency Medical S ervices 
Commission (EMS.) and Central Valley Ambulance Community (CVAA). 
 
In determining the financial reporting entity, the County complies with the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity,” and GASB Statement No. 39, “Determining 
Whether C ertain O rganizations ar e C omponent U nits.” A ccordingly, t he C ounty r eports as  
component units those entities for which the County appoints a voting majority of the board of 
directors, upon which the County is able to impose its will, or where a financial benefit or burden 
exists.    
 
The Skagit County Emergency Medical Services Commission was established on April 1, 2003 
by Ordinance #O20030003 of the Board of County Commissioners. The EMS was established 
pursuant t o t he R evised C ode o f Washington 35.21.730 and 36 .01.095 for t he purpose o f 
providing emergency medical services within the County. EMS is funded by an excess property 
tax levy approved by the voters through 2012. The Board of County Commissioners appoints 
the members of the EMS board and has final approval on the EMS operating budget.  As of July 
1, 2009, EMS no longer directly provided emergency medical services in Central Skagit County 
as per Ordinance #O20090003 adopted by Board of County Commissioners. 
 
The Central V alley A mbulance Commission w as es tablished in A pril 2009 by  Ordinance 
#O20090004 pu rsuant to t he RCW 35.21.730 and R esolution # R20090255 es tablished a  
separate fund June 2009.   Central Valley Ambulance Authority i s a c omponent uni t o f Skagit 
County and beg an i ts oper ations J uly 1,  2009.   C entral V alley Ambulance A uthority i s a 
governmental a gency p roviding em ergency m edical c are and transportation s ervices t o the 
citizens of Skagit County, mainly their response coverage area. 

More i nformation concerning both the EMS Co mmission and t he CVA Commission, i ncluding 
complete financial s tatements can be ob tained at  t heir respective offices i n Mt. V ernon, 
Washington.  
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
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Skagit County, Washington 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2009 
 
 

 

Government-wide financial statements consist of the statement of net assets and the statement 
of ac tivities. T hese s tatements report i nformation on al l of  t he non -fiduciary a ctivities of t he 
primary government and  i ts component uni t. For  t he most par t, t he e ffect o f i nterfund ac tivity 
has been r emoved f rom t hese s tatements. G overnmental ac tivities, which nor mally ar e 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separate from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The component unit 
is reported separately from the county. 

The statement o f ac tivities reflects the de gree to which the ex penses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a s pecific function or  segment. Additionally, t he County al locates a  por tion o f i ts i ndirect 
costs to i ndividual f unctions. These i ndirect costs have been i ncluded as  par t o f t he pr ogram 
expenses reported for the various functional activities. 
 
Program revenues include charges for goods and services and grants or contributions that are 
restricted t o the p rogram’s pur pose. Taxes an d ot her i tems no t pr operly i ncluded am ong 
program revenues are reported as general revenues. 
 
Fund financial statements are used to report additional and more detailed information about the 
primary government. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, 
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government 
wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise 
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The g overnment-wide f inancial s tatements a re r eported us ing the economic r esources 
measurement focus and the accrual bas is o f accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time l iabilities ar e i ncurred, r egardless o f the t iming o f r elated cash flows. P roperty t axes ar e 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

All governmental funds are presented using the flow of “current financial resources” 
measurement focus and  t he m odified ac crual b asis of  ac counting. R evenues ar e r ecognized 
when they become measurable and av ailable. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current per iod. Fo r t his pur pose, the C ounty c onsiders r evenues t o be av ailable if t hey ar e 
collected w ithin 60 da ys o f t he end o f the fiscal per iod. R evenues s usceptible t o ac crual ar e 
earned interest, certain charges for services and i ntergovernmental revenues such as  grants, 
where pr ogram ex penditures ar e t he pr ime factor for det ermining reimbursement. O ther 
revenues, s uch as  licenses, fines and fees, a re not  c onsidered s usceptible f or ac crual s ince 
they are not generally measurable until received. Expenditures are generally recorded when the 
related fund liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
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Skagit County reports the following major governmental funds: 

• The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It is used to account for all 
activities of the general government not accounted for in another fund. 

• The County Road Fund accounts for t he des ign, construction, and maintenance of 
County roads. 

• The Facility Improvement Fund accounts for expenditures incurred in capital 
projects. 

• The M ental H ealth Fund ac counts for expenditures relating t o s upport services 
provided to citizens with mental and developmental disabilities.  

Skagit County reports two major proprietary funds: 

• The Solid Waste Fund accounts for the collection of fees and the cost of providing 
solid waste services to the residents of the County. 

• The D rainage U tility Fund ac counts for t he c ollection o f fees, c harges and r elated 
revenues, and the payment of costs related to drainage facilities. 

 
Additionally, the County reports the following fund types: 

• Internal Service Funds account for equipment rental, insurance, and technology 
services pr ovided t o County departments and to ot her governments on a c ost 
reimbursement basis. 

 
• Agency Funds  ar e c ustodial i n nat ure and do not  pr esent r esults o f o perations o r 

have a measurement focus. These funds account for assets (such as property taxes 
collected on  behalf o f ot her governments) that the C ounty hol ds f or ot hers i n an  
agency capacity. Agency  Funds include fire, school, port, cemetery, air pollution, city 
and town, library, dike and drain  districts and miscellaneous clearing fund activity. 

 
Private sector standards of accounting and financial reports issued prior to December 1, 1989 
generally are followed in both government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the 
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental 
Accounting S tandards Board. Governments al so hav e t he opt ion o f following s ubsequent 
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the 
same limitations. The County has elected not to apply subsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial s tatements. E xceptions to this general rule ar e payments-in-lieu of taxes and ot her 
charges between the various other functions o f the government. E limination o f t hese charges 
would di stort t he di rect c osts and pr ogram r evenues r eported for the v arious f unctions 
concerned. 

Proprietary funds di stinguish oper ating revenues and ex penses f rom non -operating i tems. 
Operating revenues and ex penses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods i n c onnection w ith a pr oprietary fund’s pr incipal on going ope rations. The 
principal operating revenues of the Solid Waste Fund and the Drainage Utility Fund are charges 
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to c ustomers for s ales and s ervices. O perating ex penses f or en terprise f unds and i nternal 
service funds i nclude the cost of personal services, contractual services, other supplies and 
expenses and depreciation on capital assets. Revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When bot h restricted and unr estricted resources ar e available f or us e, i t i s t he g overnment’s 
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Equity 
 

Cash held in checking accounts and petty cash are reported as cash on the financial statements 
of the governmental funds. Cash and cash equivalents reported on the government wide and 
proprietary funds’ statement of net assets includes all demand deposits and investments with an 
initial maturity of three months or less. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Investments
 

– See Note IV  

Receivables and Payables 

Amounts due for the exchange of goods and services between County funds are reported as 
due to or due from other funds. Loans between funds are reported as interfund loans receivable 
or pay able. A ny r esidual bal ances out standing be tween t he governmental ac tivities and 
business-type ac tivities are r eported i n t he g overnment-wide f inancial s tatements as  “ internal 
balances”. I nterfund bal ances bet ween governmental funds and internal s ervice funds h ave 
been eliminated and were not included in the government-wide statement of net assets. 
 
Taxes Receivable consists of property taxes levied and not yet paid, along with the related 
interest and penalties.  
 
Accounts Receivable consists of amounts owed from pr ivate individuals for goods or services.  
All receivables have been recorded net of any estimated uncollectible amounts. 
 
Receivables due f rom other governments include amounts due from grantors for grants issued 
for specific programs and capital projects. 

Interest receivable consists of amounts earned but not yet received on investments held at the 
end of the year. 
 
Inventory in the governmental funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The 
cost is recorded as an expenditure when consumed rather than when items are purchased. All 
inventories are valued by the first-in first-out method. 

Inventories i n the equipment r ental and r evolving fund ar e valued at  average weighted c ost 
method. Other inventories are valued by the first-in first-out method. 

Prepayments made for services that will benefit future periods are recorded as prepaid items in 
both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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Capital Assets – see note IV 

Capital assets include land, improvements, easements, buildings, vehicles, machinery, 
equipment, infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations. 
The County defines capital assets as assets with an i nitial individual cost of  more than $5,000 
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 

Infrastructure assets are long-lived assets that ar e stationary in nature and normally can be 
preserved for a significantly greater num ber of years than most c apital assets. Examples of 
infrastructure include roads, bridges, drainage systems and the ferry system. 

When capital assets ar e pur chased, t hey ar e capitalized and depr eciated i n t he g overnment-
wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund statements. Capital assets are recorded as 
expenditures of the current period in the governmental fund financial statements. 

Capital as sets ar e v alued at  c ost w here hi storical r ecords ar e av ailable and at  an es timated 
historical cost where no records exist. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair 
value on the date received. 

Improvements to capital assets that materially add to the value or extend the life of the asset are 
capitalized. Other repairs and nor mal maintenance are not capitalized. Interest incurred during 
the c onstruction phas e of c apital as sets o f bu siness-type ac tivities i s i ncluded as  par t o f t he 
capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Infrastructure, bui ldings, i mprovements, e quipment and v ehicles ar e depr eciated us ing the 
straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

• Buildings – 5 to 40 years; 
 
• Improvements – 15 to 40 years; 

• Furniture and Equipment – 3 to 25 years; 
 
• Information Technology Equipment – 5 years; 

• Vehicles – 5 to 25 years; 

• Infrastructure – 20 to 50 years. 
 
Compensated Absences 

It i s t he County’s pol icy t o per mit em ployees t o accumulate ear ned but  unused vacation and  
sick leave benef its. A ll v acation pay  i s ac crued w hen i ncurred i n t he g overnment-wide and  
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental 
funds onl y i f they hav e m atured, for ex ample as  a r esult o f e mployee r esignations an d 
retirements. The non-current portion for governmental  
fund is not reported in the governmental fund statements and represents a reconciling item 
between the fund and government-wide presentations. 
 
County em ployees r eceive vacation and s ick l eave m onthly at  r ates e stablished by  C ounty 
resolution or union contract. At termination of employment, employees with a required length of 
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service may receive cash payment for al l accumulated vacation leave up to a m aximum of 30 
days. The payment is based upon c urrent wages at termination. Accumulated sick leave is not 
paid at  t ermination o f employment unless an e mployee has  at  least five years o f service and 
480 hour s o f ac crued s ick l eave bank ed. R etirees m ay r eceive c ash p ayment for up t o 240  
hours, and a non-retiree payment for up to 60 hours of accumulated sick leave if requested. 
 
Long-Term Obligations – See Note V 
 
Fund Equity 

Fund eq uity i s r ecognized as  f und balance i n governmental fund t ypes, and as  net  assets i n 
proprietary f und t ypes. Fund bal ance m ay be  reserved or  unr eserved. N et as sets m ay be 
subject to legal restriction for a pa rticular purpose. Unless otherwise noted, fund balances and 
net assets are unreserved and unrestricted. 
 
II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

Total governmental fund balances as reported on the governmental funds balance sheet differs 
from net assets of governmental activities as reported on the statement of net assets due to the 
different accounting methods applied in the preparation of these statements. The governmental 
fund statements are presented on the modified accrual basis and the statement of net assets is 
presented on a full accrual basis. Also, net internal service fund activity is included in 
governmental activities.  
 
Explanation of certain reconciling items reported on the reconciliation of the governmental funds 
balance sheet to the government wide statement of net assets: 
 

Net Capital Assets 
 

Total Capital Assets $566,254,886 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (196,529,538) 
Construction in Progress  629,814 
     Net Capital Assets $370,355,162  

 
 
Long-Term Liabilities 

 
Bonds Payable $14,655,000 
Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs (344,087) 
Unamortized Bond Discounts/Premiums 28,647 
Loans Payable 3,887,072 
Compensated Absences Liability 2,298,451 
OPEB Liability 186,627 
Accrued Interest Payable on Long Term Liabilities 105,799 
     Long Term Liabilities $20,817,508 
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Explanation of  c ertain reconciling items reported on  the reconciliation o f t he s tatement o f 
revenues, e xpenditures, and changes i n fund b alances to the government w ide s tatement o f 
activities: 
 

Net Capital Asset Activity 
 

Net Capital Expenditures Subject to Capitalization  $ 10,095,239  
Depreciation Expense       

(16,496,751) 
Donated Assets 394,462 

     Net Capital Asset Activity  $ (6,007,050) 
 

Net Long -Term Debt Activity 
 

Proceeds of Long Term Debt  $    (389,608)  
Principal Payments   1,017,081 
Amortization of Bond Discounts/Premiums (32,846) 
Amortization of Bond Issuance Costs         (26,468) 
Change in Compensated Absences Liability 119,172 
Change in OPEB Liability (112,386) 

     Net Long -Term Debt Activity  $574,944 

III.      STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
Budgetary Information 
 
Scope of Budget 

The annual  bud get for Skagit C ounty i s adopt ed i n ac cordance w ith t he pr ovisions o f t he 
Revised Code of Washington (RCW), as interpreted by the Budgeting, Accounting, and 
Reporting System (BARS) of the State of Washington, and on a basis consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
 
The annual appropriated budget is adopted at the department level within each fund. For 
management pur poses, expenditures ar e further s egregated by  “ object class” o f expenditure. 
“Object class” refers to a segmentation of expenditures into five categories. These categories 
are salaries and wages, personnel benefits, supplies, other services and charges, and capital 
expenditures. E xpenditures may not  ex ceed ap propriations a t the de partment l evel and t he 
budgets constitute the legal authority for expenditures at that level. All appropriations lapse thirty 
days after the close of each fiscal year. 
 
Budget s tatus reports a re us ed t o c ompare the budgeted a mounts w ith ac tual r evenues and  
expenditures. Revenues and expenditures can be monitored at fund, department, division, 
activity, or object class level. 
Procedures for Adopting the Original Budget 
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Skagit County adheres to the statutory provisions established by Revised Code of Washington 
(RCW) 36.40. Significant procedures in the budget process include the following: 

 
• On or before the second Monday in July, County officials are requested to 

prepare estimates of revenues and expenditures for the next fiscal year. 

• On or before the second Monday in August, each County official submits detailed 
estimates of probable revenues and expenditures for the ensuing year. 

• On or  be fore t he first Tuesday i n S eptember, the p reliminary annual budget is 
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners. 

 
• The C ommissioners c onduct publ ic meetings/hearings on the p roposed budget 

from September through October. 

• The Commissioners make ad justments to the proposed bud get and adopt, by 
resolution, a final balanced budget no later than December 31. 

• Upon adoption, the final budget is available to the public. 
 
Amending the Budget 

Budget r evisions i n t he form o f s upplemental appr opriation r esolutions ar e appr oved by  t he 
Board o f C ounty C ommissioners i n t he l egally pr escribed m anner d uring publ ic m eetings 
throughout the year. Any proposed revisions which alter the total appropriation of any fund are 
published in the County’s legal newspaper once per week for two consecutive weeks before the 
public hearing to enable taxpayer input.  

Changes to the appropriation for object classes that do not alter the total budget for a fund may 
be made by resolution approved by a simple majority during a public meeting.  
 
Deficit Fund Equity 

The following funds had deficit fund balances/net assets as of December 31, 2009: 
 
The Hansen Creek Sub-Flood Control Zone Fund deficit was $35,994. Operating assessments 
being collected from property owners in this zone will resolve the deficit by December of 2013.  
 
The Solid W aste Fund deficit was $4,353,451. This r esults pr imarily f rom the r ecording of 
liabilities for landfill post closure care costs and environmental remediation costs.  
 
The Fac ility I mprovement fund de ficit was $3, 131,965. This r esults pr imarily f rom new f acility 
purchases and remodels.  
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IV. DETAIL INFORMATION BY TRANSACTION TYPE 
 
A. Deposits and Investments 
 
Deposits 

The Skagit County Treasurer is empowered by the State to act as the treasurer not only for the 
County but also for special purpose districts located in the County. In this role, the Treasurer is 
empowered and i t is the County’s policy to deposit and invest all temporary cash surpluses. At 
the end of the year, the total amount held in certificates of deposit and money market accounts 
was $36,617,315 and the treasurer’s bank balance was $2,695,577, all of which was covered by 
federal depository insurance or collateralized with securities which are either held by the County 
or by the County’s agent in the County’s name. The FDIC ( Federal D epository Insurance 
Corporation) i nsures al l depos its o f the C ounty up t o $250, 000 and the Washington P ublic 
Deposit P rotection C ommission i nsures amounts ov er $100, 000.  On J anuary 1,  2014,  t he 
standard i nsurance a mount w ill r eturn to $100 ,000 per  depo sitor for all ac count c ategories 
except certain retirement accounts, which will remain at $250,000 per depositor. 
 
Investments 

As required by Washington State law, all investments of Skagit County and applicable agency 
funds are obligations of the United States Government, the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool, 
commercial paper, or deposits with Washington State banks and savings and loans institutions. 

U. S . G overnment s ecurities and c ommercial paper  ar e s tated a t fair v alue. A ll ot her 
investments are s tated at amortized cost which approximates fair value. The fair value o f the 
County’s pos ition in t he S tate Treasurer’s Local Government I nvestment Pool i s t he same as 
the v alue of  t he pool  s hares. A uthority t o m anage the S kagit C ounty I nvestment P rogram 
derives f rom R CW 36.29.020. R egulatory ov ersight i s pr ovided by  t he C ounty Fi nance 
Committee, comprised of the Treasurer as Chair, the Auditor as Secretary, and the County 
Commissioner’s Chair. The State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool was created 
by the Washington State Legislature in 1986 and is overseen by the State Treasurer. The State 
Finance Committee administers the pool and is advised by the Local Government Investment 
Pool A dvisory Committee, comprised o f t welve m embers s elected from t he ac tive pool  
participants. The pool  i s oper ated i n a m anner c onsistent w ith t he S EC R ule 2a7.   Net 
investment income is allocated monthly to participants and is based on t heir average 
proportionate share of net assets in relation to the total net investment income for the LGIP for 
that month.  Allocations are reinvested in the LGIP. 

Management intends to hold time deposits and securities until maturity. Gains or losses on 
investments sold or exchanged are recognized at the time the transactions are completed. 
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As of December 31, 2009, the County held the following investments: 
 
Inves tm ent Type Fair  Value Year  Matur ity 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years
Certif icates of Deposit 24,122,562$       17,595,071$       6,206,062$      -$                     321,429$       
Money Market 12,494,753         12,494,753         -                       -                       -                     
Registered Warrants 516,193              516,193              -                       -                       -                     
Commericial Paper 1,499,606           1,499,606           -                       -                       -                     
Treasury Bills 99,996                99,996                -                       -                       -                     
Treasury Notes 1,205,510           706,916              -                       498,594           -                     
Municipal Bonds 3,567,183           497,402              2,249,486        820,294           -                     
U.S. Agencies 78,129,046         16,628,570         15,806,738      42,348,240      3,345,499      
State Treasurer Pool 151,002,961       151,002,961       -                       -                       -                     

272,637,810$     201,041,468$     24,262,286$    43,667,128$    3,666,928$    
 

 
Total Fair Value of investments represents $76,945,171 for Skagit County and $195,692,639 for 
the Junior Taxing districts. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Through its investment policy, the County manages its exposure to fair value losses 
arising f rom increasing interest r ates by  s etting m aturity and e ffective dur ation l imits not  t o 
exceed 36 m onths unl ess m atched t o a s pecific c ash flow r equirement. F unds s pecifically 
designated for c apital i mprovements or  for bond r edemption pu rposes m ay i n c ertain 
circumstances be invested out to five years. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial c redit r isk i s t he r isk t hat i n e vent of  a f ailure o f t he counterparty t o an i nvestment 
transaction the County would not be able to cover the value of the investment or collateral 
securities. The County had no custodial credit risk as of December 31, 2009. 
 
Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. T he County’s investment policy i s t o apply the prudent-person rule: I nvestments 
shall be m ade w ith t he ex ercise o f that judgment a nd c are w hich per sons o f pr udence, 
discretion and i ntelligence exercise in the management of their affairs, not for speculation, but 
for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to 
be der ived. The County’s pol icy limits investments in commercial paper to ratings of A1 or P1 
only. 

As o f D ecember 31,  2 009, t he C ounty’s i nvestments i n U .S. A gencies i n t he am ount of 
$76,317,076(fair value) was rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s, an additional amount of $268,448 
(fair value) was rated Aaa by Moody’s.   
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Details of ratings on investments in municipal bonds and banker’s acceptances are as follows: 

Investment Type Fair Value Standard & Poor's Moody's Fitch
Municipal Bonds

Hoboken, NJ Series B 99,966$             AAA Aaa -
State of California 200,222             A+ A1 A+
Port of Camas, WA 174,656             AAA Aaa
Gastonia, NC Series B 173,456             AA- A1 AA-
NY Capital Appreciation 172,555             AA Aa3 AA-
LaCrosse Wisc 240,662             AA- A1  
Chicago, IL 308,733             AAA AA3 AAA
Pierce Co, WA Fire 206,417             AA-   
Douglas Co Ore Sch Dist 121,486             A+ A1 A+
Silver Lk Wtr & Sewer 101,529             AAA - AA-
Richland Water & Sewer 202,606             AA Stable
Sk Co Public Utility 101,700             A1 Aa2  
King Co WA Sch 411 323,635             AA1  AAA
Richland Elec-BABS 119,899             AA Stable  
Wa State CTFS 252,498              Aa2 -
Sk Co Wa School 320 103,031             A2 Aa1-  
Lynnwood WA 147,983             AA   
Lynnwood WA 135,039             AA   
Hawaii State 75,728               AA Coll W Govt -
Charlotte NC 305,382             AAA Stable AAA

Total Muncipal Bonds 3,567,183           

 
 
The C ounty al so c arried i nvestments i n r egistered w arrants and t he Washington S tate Local 
Government Investment Pool, which are unrated.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration o f c redit risk i s t he risk o f l oss at tributed t o t he magnitude of  a government’s 
investment in a s ingle issuer. The County’s pol icy is to l imit to 15 per cent of the total portfolio 
the am ount that may be  i nvested i n an y one financial i nstitution. I n addi tion, no m ore t han 3  
percent o f t he total por tfolio m ay be i nvested i n any  one i ssuer of  commercial paper  and n o 
more t han 10 per cent may be i nvested in an y one T reasury obligation. As o f D ecember 31 , 
2009, the investment in the Washington State Local Government Investment Pool was limited to 
65%, this was modified by resolution on March 16 th 

 

, 2009,  t o  allow investment in excess of 
65% when there are no other viable alternatives.  At year end, the County had no investment in 
a single issuer that was greater than 5% of total investments. 

Property Taxes 

The C ounty Treasurer a cts as  an a gent t o c ollect pr operty t axes l evied i n t he C ounty for al l 
taxing aut horities. Taxes are levied and become an enforceable l ien o n January 1st of eac h 
year. Collection of taxes is authorized on February 15th, with installments due on April 30th and 
October 31st. On May 31st

 

 the assessed value of property is established for the following year’s 
levy. Assessed value is considered to be 100% of market value.  
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Property taxes are recorded as a receivable when levied, offset by deferred revenue. Revenue 
is r ecognized when t he t axes ar e c ollected. R efunds o f taxes ar e recorded as  r eductions of 
revenue when they are measurable and due to be issued. No allowance for uncollectible taxes 
is es tablished bec ause del inquent t axes ar e c onsidered fully c ollectible. Prior y ear t ax l evies 
were recorded using the same principal, and delinquent taxes are evaluated annually. 
 
The County may levy up to $1.80 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental 
services, subject to the following limitations: 

• Washington S tate law i n RCW 84.55.010 limits t he growth o f regular property 
taxes t o 1 per cent per  y ear, a fter adj ustments for new  c onstruction. If t he 
assessed v aluation i ncreases by  m ore t han 1 percent due to r e-valuation, t he 
levy rate will be decreased. 

• The Washington State Constitution limits the total regular p roperty t axes t o 1  
percent o f as sessed v aluation or  $10 per  $1 ,000 o f v alue. If the t axes o f al l 
districts exceed this amount, each is proportionately reduced unt il the total is at 
or below the 1 percent limit. 

• The C ounty m ay v oluntarily l evy t axes b elow t he le gal lim it. Special le vies 
approved by the voters are not subject to the above limitations. 

2009 tax levy information is as follows: 
 

Year/Entity  

Levy In Dollars 
Assessed Per 

Thousand  Total Value  Levy 
2009       

County   $            1.2139   $ 16,868,200,169    $      20,476,308  
Medic 1 Services  0.2273  16,846,530,892  3,829,216 
Roads                 1.3919   8,366,672,406            11,645,571  
Conservation Futures               0.0426   16,868,200,169  718,585 

 
The County tax rate includes a levy for general governmental services and special revenue 
assessments. 
 
The County is authorized to levy taxes in unincorporated areas for road construction and 
maintenance, subject to the same limitations as the levy for general government services. 

The C onservation Fut ures t ax r ate i s a non -voter appr oved ex cess l evy f or t he pu rpose of 
acquiring land development rights for preservation purposes. 
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B. Receivables 

Governmental funds report revenues as deferred if they are not available to liquidate liabilities of 
the current period or are not yet earned. Detail of deferred revenue balances as of December 
31, 2009 is as follows: 
 

  Unavailable  Unearned Total 
Property Taxes Receivable (General Fund)  $852,373    $            -  $852,373 
Property Taxes Receivable (Road Fund)  371,718   - 371,718 
Property Taxes Receivable (Mental Health Fund)  11,509  - 11,509 
Property T axes R eceivable ( Other G overnmental 
Funds) 

 
234,518  - 

234,518 

Revenue earned but not yet available  1,654,037    1,654,037 
Revenue received prior t o m eeting a ll e ligibility 
requirements 

 
-  557,389 

557,389 

Total Deferred Revenue for Governmental Funds  $3,124,155  $557,389 $3,681,544 
 
 
C. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 

Details of interfund payable/receivable balances as of December 31, 2009 are as follows: 
 

Due to Other Funds General Fund

Other 
Governmental 

Funds
Internal 

Service Funds Drainage Utility Total
Mental Health           $        -           $        -              $        -                $      - -                   
Facility Improvement                 -                 -                 -                    - -                   
Non-Major Governmental Funds 25,906 902                  1,111,997                            - 1,138,805      
Solid Waste                 - 604 -                                         - 604                  

Total $25,906 $1,506 1,111,997         $0 1,139,409      

Due from Other Funds

 
        
These balances are the result of transactions involving the exchange of goods and s ervices in 
the ordinary operations of the respective funds. 
 
Interfund loans have been made to provide cash flows for the operations of the receiving funds. 
Details of interfund loans are as follows:  
 

Borrowing Fund  Lending Fund  
Balance 
1/1/2009  New Loans  Repayment  

Balance 
12/31/2009 

Clean Water Program  General Fund  $            -               $       30,000  $30,000      $            -  
Substance Abuse Svcs  General Fund             70,000  70,000   
Britt Slough Flood Control  General Fund       44,000                500         44,500                      - 
Hansen Creek Sub Flood  General Fund   56,000              7,500   30,000    33,500  
Lake Management No. 1  General Fund       16,500                   20,000  36,500       -  
Lake Management No. 4  General Fund   75,000                 500   75,500                  - 
Drainage Utility  General Fund  28,000              28,000 
Solid Waste  General Fund  232,500      232,500 
Edison Clean Water  General Fund  3,000      3,000 
Facility Improvement  Gnrl Fund/Cap Facilities     431,000      4,639,000         70,000          5,000,000  
Internal Service Fund  General Fund             19,000    19,000 
   Total    $886,000   $  4,786,500  $356,500   $5,316,000  
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Interfund transfers represent subsidies and  contributions pr ovided t o the r eceiving fund. Most 
transfers from the general f und are for t he purposes of ordinary operations and debt  service. 
Transfers out of non-major governmental funds are generally for debt service and capital project 
funding. Details of 2009 transfers are as follows: 
 

 Transfers In

Transfers Out
General 

Fund Mental Health
Facility 

Improvement
Drainage 

Utility
Non-Major 

Governmental Total
General Fund -$              -$               -$                 -$             4,057,877$    4,057,877$ 
Mental Health 18,279          -                  -                   -                590,075          608,354       
County Roads -                -                  2,095,166       -                770,450          2,865,616    
Non-Major Governmental -                3,940             -                   98,948         1,607,346       1,710,234    
Total 18,279$       3,940$           2,095,166$     98,948$       7,025,748$    9,242,081$ 

 
 
D. Capital Assets 
 
Summarized capital asset transactions for governmental activities are as follows: 
 

   
Beginning 
Balance  Increases  Decreases  

Ending 
Balance 

Governmental Activities          
         
Capital assets, Non-depreciable         

Land  $18,375,096  -  $              -  18,375,096 
Development rights  8,829,370  1,667,745                  -  10,497,115 
Capital asset held for resale            392,956  -                  -  392,956 
Construction in progress         2,477,062  221,700      (2,068,949)  629,813 

   30,074,484  1,889,445      (2,068,949)        29,894,980 
         
Depreciable Capital Assets          

Buildings  46,298,301  6,300,655  -  52,598,955 
Improvements  7,255,775  81,639         (157,443)  7,179,972 
Machinery and equipment  22,390,229  1,683,392  (2,160,587)  21,913,034 
Infrastructure  467,869,083  4,261,256  -  472,130,339 

  543,813,388  12,326,942  (2,318,030)  553,822,300 
         
Less accumulated depreciation:         

Buildings  (17,461,278)  (1,106,149)  -  (18,567,426) 
Improvements  (3,689,778)  (302,282)            260,343  (3,731,717) 
Machinery and equipment  (13,922,614)  (1,882,181)  3,101,456  (12,703,339) 
Infrastructure  (179,699,612)  (14,979,120)  24,969,732  (169,709,000) 

  (214,773,282)  (18,269,732)  28,331,531   (204,711,483) 
         
Total Net Depreciable Capital Assets  329,040,105  (5,942,790)  26,013,501  349,110,816 

Total Net Capital Assets  $359,114,590  ($4,053,345)  $23,944,552   $379,005,797 

Depreciation expense by function for governmental activities is as follows: 
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General Governmental Services $878,064 
Public Safety 656,375 
Physical Environment - 
Transportation 16,281,279 
Economic Environment 17,831 
Mental and Physical Health 111,952 
Culture and Recreation 377,096 
Total governmental activities depreciation 
expense $18,322,597 

 
 
Summarized capital asset transactions for business type activities are as follows: 

  

  
Beginning 
Balance  Increases  Decreases  

Ending 
Balance 

Business - Type Activities          
         
Capital assets, Non-depreciable          

Land  $639,309            153,750  $   -  $793,059 
Construction in progress  564,293  292,394  (344,369)  512,318 
  1,203,602  446,144  (344,369)  1,305,377 

         
Depreciable Capital Assets         

Buildings  1,825,299            942,700      (1,279,407)  1,488,591 
Improvements  4,557,455  1,561,460             (7,577)  6,111,338 
Machinery and equipment  623,746       -         (122,275)  501,471 

  7,006,500  2,504,160      (1,409,259)  8,101,400 
         
Less accumulated depreciation:         

Buildings  (1,776,573)  (525,872)     1,274,999  ($1,027,446) 
Improvements  (859,341)  (1,413,819)            1,997  (2,271,162) 
Machinery and equipment  (548,271)  (9,288)        122,275  (435,284) 

  (3,184,185)  (1,948,979)     1,399,271  (3,733,892) 
         
Total Net Depreciable Capital Assets  3,822,315  555,181           (9,988)  4,367,508 
                         Total Net Capital Assets  $5,025,918  $1,001,325  $(354,357)  $5,672,885 

  
 
Depreciation expense by function for business type activities is as follows: 
 

Solid Waste 42,454 
Drainage Utility 166,792 
Total business type activities depr eciation 
expense $209,246 
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V. LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

Skagit C ounty’s l ong-term debt  liabilities include general obl igation bonds and l oans from t he 
State of Washington. 

 
For t he p roprietary funds and on t he government–wide f inancial s tatements, bond p remiums 
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. 
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Governmental 
funds recognize bond premiums, discounts and issuance costs in period that they are incurred. 
Proceeds of debt are reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuance 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses. 
Issuance co sts, including t hose withheld f rom proceeds, are r eported as debt s ervice 
expenditures. 
 
Detail of general obligation bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2009 is as follows: 
 
Description Balance 

In 1997 bonds were issued in the amount of $875,000 to finance the purchase 
of an office building and t he renovation of an ex isting building. Repayment has 
been f inanced by  lease-purchase a greements with non -profit s ocial s ervice 
agencies. Principal payments are due annually on June 1, interest payments are 
due on June 1 and D ecember 1. The interest rates range from 4.10% for 1999 
maturities to 5.20% for maturities in 2013. The bonds are scheduled to mature 
June 1, 2013. Principal payments of $65,000 and interest payments of $16,940 
were made in 2009. 

$300,000 

In 2003 bonds  were i ssued i n t he am ount o f $5, 340.000 t o finance t he 
acquisition and renovation of a building to house County offices, and to refund 
1993 bonds. Principal payments are due annually on December 1, interest 
payments ar e due  on June 1 and D ecember 1 . T he i nterest r ates range f rom 
2.00% for 2003 maturities to 4.10% for maturities in 2017. Principal payments of 
$155,000 and interest payments of $61,313 were made in 2009. 

1,495,000 

In 2005 bonds were issued in the amount of $5,475,000. $160,000 of the 
proceeds were used to acquire land for county facilities. This portion of the issue 
is being serviced by general government revenues. Principal payments are due 
annually on D ecember 1, interest payments are due on June 1 and December 
1. The interest rate ranges from 3.00% for 2005 maturities to 3.75% for 
maturities in 2013. Principal of $20,000 and interest payments of $3,600 were 
made in 2009. 

80,000 

In 2006 bonds  i n t he amount o f $7, 610,000 were i ssued t o ac quire l and, 
construct county facilities and for other capital purposes. Principal payments are 
due annual ly on D ecember 1,  i nterest pay ments ar e due on J une 1 and 
December 1. The interest rates range from 3.75% on 2006 maturities to 4.0% 
for maturities in 2026. Principal payments of $285,000 and interest payments of 
$273,573 were made in 2009. 

6,825,000 
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Description Balance 

In 2007 bonds were issued in the amount of $6,115,000 to refund a portion of 
the 2000  Bond i ssue. Principal pay ments ar e due annual ly on D ecember 1,  
interest payments are due on June 1 and December 1. The interest rates range 
from 3 .875% on 2007 maturities to 4. 00% for m aturities i n 2022 . P rincipal 
payments of $40,000 and interest payments of $233,953 were made in 2009.                                                                                                                                                  

5,955,000 

Total bonds payable at December 31, 2009 for governmental activities $14,655,000 

Proceeds in the amount of $5,315,000 from the 2005 bond i ssue were used to 
refund the callable maturities of the 1996 bond issue. The proceeds of the 1996 
issue w ere us ed for pu rposes relating t o solid w aste di sposal and t he 200 5 
refunding bonds are being serviced by the solid waste fund. Principal payments 
are due annually on D ecember 1, i nterest pay ments are due on June 1 and 
December 1. The interest rates range from 3.00% on 2005  maturities to 3.75% 
for maturities in 2013. Principal payments of $735,000 and interest payments of 
$142,775 were made in 2009. 

$3,225,000 

Total bonds payable at December 31, 2009 for business-type activities $3,225,000 

 
 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the general obligation bonds are as follows: 

 
  Governmental Activities  Business-Type Activities 

Year Ending 
December 31  Principal  Interest  Principal  Interest 

2010  910,000  568,603  765,000  117,050 
2011  945,000  533,834  790,000  90,275 
2012  975,000  497,371  820,000  62,625 
2013  1,015,000  459,385  850,000  31,875 
2014  950,000  421,736  -  - 
2015-2019  4,460,000  1,540,239  -  - 
2020-2024  4,350,000  671,413  -  - 
2025-2026  1,050,000  84,000  -  - 
Totals  $14,655,000  $4,776,581  $3,225,000  $301,825 
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Refunded Bonds 
In 2007 the County refunded a portion of the 2000 bond issue using proceeds from the 2007 
bond issue. These proceeds were placed in an i rrevocable trust to fund all future payments on 
the 2000 bonds. Accordingly, those 2000 bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability 
for t hem is not i ncluded i n t he 200 9 financial s tatements. A s o f the December 31,  200 9 the 
balance of the defeased bonds outstanding is $5,735,000. 
 
Loans Payable 
Detail of loans payable as of December 31, 2009 is as follows: 

Description  Balance  

Payable t o t he S tate of  Washington D epartment o f E cology Water P ollution 
Control Revolving Fund pursuant to a 1997 loan agreement. The term is 20 years 
and no interest is due. Principal payments of $17,768 were made in 2009.  

$168,797 

Payable t o t he S tate of  Washington D epartment o f E cology Water P ollution 
Control Revolving Fund pursuant to a 2000 loan agreement. The term is 20 years 
and no interest is due. Principal payments of $2,948 were made in 2009. 

41,267 

Payable t o t he S tate of  Washington Community Economic Revitalization Board 
pursuant to a 2001 l oan agreement. The term is 20 years and no i nterest is due. 
Principal payments of $56,667 were made in 2009. 

680,000 

Payable to the State of Washington Department of Ecology pursuant to a 2005 
loan agreement. The term is 20 years at  1.5% interest. Principal payments of 
$69,698 and interest payments of $21,931 were made in 2009. 

1,405,141 

Payable to the State of Washington Department of Ecology pursuant to a 2007 
loan agreement. Payments are to begin in 2012. The interest rate is 2.6% and the 
term is 20 years. 

1,584,959 

Total loans payable at December 31, 2009 for governmental activities $3,880,164 

 
 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for loans payable are as follows: 
 

Year Ending  
December 31  Principal  Interest 

2010  148,133  20,878 
2011  149,202  19,809 
2012  181,749  44,340 
2013  215,545  67,623 
2014  218,342  64,826 
2015-2019  1,126,954  280,002 
2020-2024  953,713  200,339 
2025-2029  684,854  115,001 
2030-2031  201,672  26,642 
  $3,880,164  $839,460 

Debt Limitation 
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State law places certain restrictions on t he County’s abi lity t o i ssue general obl igation bonds. 
Without an authorizing vote, limited tax general obligation bonds may be issued in an amount up 
to 1 .5% o f t he as sessed v aluation o f r eal pr operty w ithin t he c ounty. Unlimited t ax general 
obligation bonds may be i ssued up t o 2.5% of the assessed valuation with voter approval. No 
combination of limited and unlimited tax bonds may exceed 2.5% of the assessed valuation. 
 
At December 31, 2009, the county’s remaining capacity for non-voted debt was $228,698,918. 
Additional debt capacity with an authorizing vote is $159,895,757. 
 
 
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
Details of changes in long term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2009, is as follows: 
 

 
  

Beginning 
Balance  New Issue  Retirements  

Ending 
Balance  

Due Within 
One Year 

Governmental Activities:           
Bonds Payable           

General Obligation Bonds  $15,525,000  $            $870,000  $14,655,000  $910,000 
Add: Net Unamortized 

Discounts/Premiums  29,110     463  28,647   
Total Bonds Payable  15,554,110    870,463  14,683,647  910,000 

           
Loans Payable  3,637,637  389,607  147,080  3,880,164  148,133 
Note Payable  13,426     6,518  6,908  6,908 
Compensated Absences  2,354,081  3,839,289  3,671,982  2,521,388   
OPEB Liability  305,799    119,172  186,627   
Environmental Liabilities  119,800    2,505  117,295           50,000 
Total Long-Term Liabilities  $21,984,853  4,228,896  4,817,720  21,396,029  1,115,041 

 
 
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 

 
  

Beginning 
Balance  New Issue  Retirements  

Ending 
Balance  

Due Within 
One Year 

Business-Type Activities:           
Bonds Payable           

General Obligation Bonds  $3,960,000  $             $735,000  $3,225,000  $765,000 
Discounts/ Premiums  17,405    3,481  13,924   
Less: Unamortized  Refunding 
Costs  (115,092)    (23,018)  (92,074)   

  3,862,313    715,463  3,146,850  $765,000 
           
Compensated Absences  65,956  237,446  216,394  87,007   
Post Closure Landfill Costs  3,534,229    175,876  3,358,352  171,616 
Environmental Liability       1,671,299            290,170  1,381,129  179,000 
Total Long-Term Liabilities  $9,133,797  $237,446  $1,397,903  $7,973,339  $1,115,616 

 
For governmental activities, the General Fund or  the respective special revenue fund generally 
liquidates compensated absences.  
VI. PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS 
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Substantially all Skagit County’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in a 
retirement plan administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. The 
Department of R etirement Systems (DRS) issues a publicly available comprehensive annual 
financial r eport (CAFR). The D RS C AFR m ay be obtained by  writing to: Department of 
Retirement Systems, Communication Unit,  
 
P.O. Box 48380, Olympia WA 98504-8380. T he following disclosures are made pursuant to 
GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers. 
 
A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plans 1, 2 and 3 
 
Plan Description 

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans: 
Plan 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined 
contribution component. 

Membership i n t he s ystem i ncludes: el ected officials; s tate e mployees; e mployees of  the 
Supreme, A ppeals, and S uperior c ourts (other than j udges c urrently i n a j udicial r etirement 
system); employees of  legislative committees; community and t echnical colleges, college and 
university employees not participating in national higher education retirement programs; judges 
of district and municipal courts; and employees of local governments. 
 
PERS participants who joined the system by September 30, 1977, are Plan 1 members. Those 
who joined on or after October 1, 1977 and by either, February 28, 2002 for state and higher 
education employees, or August 31, 2002 for local government employees, are Plan 2 members 
unless they exercise an option to transfer their membership to Plan 3. PERS participants joining 
the system on or  after March 1, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or September 
1, 2002 for local government employees have the irrevocable option of choosing membership in 
either PERS Plan 2 or  
 
PERS P lan 3.  T he op tion m ust be ex ercised w ithin 90 day s of  employment. A n employee i s 
reported in Plan 2 unt il a choice is made. Employees who fail to choose within 90 days default 
to PERS Plan 3. 
PERS def ined bene fit retirement bene fits a re financed from a c ombination o f i nvestment 
earnings and e mployer and em ployee c ontributions. P ERS r etirement b enefit pr ovisions ar e 
established in state statute and may be amended only by the State Legislature. 

Plan 1 members are vested after the employee completes five years of eligible service. Plan 1 
members are eligible for retirement at any age after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with 
five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 25 years of service. The annual pension is two 
percent o f the av erage f inal c ompensation per  y ear of  s ervice, c apped at  60 per cent. The 
average final c ompensation i s bas ed on t he g reatest c ompensation du ring any  24 el igible 
consecutive compensation months. Plan 1 retirement from inactive status prior to the age of 65 
may receive actuarially reduced benefits. The benefit is actuarially reduced to reflect the choice 
of a survivor option. A cost-of-living allowance (COLA) is granted at age 66 based upon years of 
service times the COLA amount, increased by 3 percent annually. Plan 1 members may also 
elect to receive an additional C OLA am ount (indexed to the Seattle consumer P rice I ndex), 
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capped at  t hree per cent annual ly. To of fset t he cost o f t his annual  adj ustment, t he bene fit i s 
reduced. 
 
Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 2 
members may retire at the age of 65 with five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 20 years 
of service, with an allowance of 2 percent of the average final compensation per year of service. 
The av erage final compensation i s bas ed on  t he gr eatest c ompensation dur ing any  el igible 
consecutive 60-month period. Plan 2 retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. 
If r etirement i s at  a ge 55 or  ol der w ith at  l east 30  y ears o f s ervice, a 3 pe rcent per  y ear 
reduction appl ies; o therwise an ac tuarial r eduction w ill appl y. T he ben efit i s al so ac tuarially 
reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap on years of service credit; and 
a cost-of-living allowance is granted (indexed to the Seattle Consumer Price Index), capped at 
three percent annually. 
 
Plan 3  has a dua l b enefit s tructure. E mployer c ontributions finance a def ined bene fit 
component, and member contributions finance a defined contribution component. The defined 
benefit portion provides a benefit calculated at 1 percent of the average final compensation per 
year of service. The average final compensation is based on the greatest compensation during 
any eligible consecutive 60-month period. Effective June 7, 2006, Plan 3 members are vested in 
the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service, if 
twelve months of that service were earned after age 44; or after five service credit years earned 
in PERS Plan 2 pr ior to June 1,  2003. Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined 
contribution portion of their plan. Vested Plan 3 members are eligible to retire with full benefits at 
age 65, or at age 55 with 10 years of service. Retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced 
benefits. If retirement is at age 55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year 
reduction appl ies; o therwise an ac tuarial r eduction w ill appl y. T he ben efit i s al so ac tuarially 
reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap on years of service credit, and 
Plan 3 provides the same cost-of-living allowance as Plan 2. 

The defined contribution portion can be distributed in accordance with an option selected by the 
member, either as a lump sum or pursuant to other options authorized by the Employee 
Retirement Benefits Board. 
 
Judicial Benefit Multiplier 
 
Beginning January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007, members were given the option of 
joining the JBM Program. Current justices or judges in PERS Plan 1 and 2 may make a one-
time irrevocable election to pay increased contributions that would fund a retirement benefit with 
a 3.5 percent multiplier. The benefit would be capped at 75 percent of average financial 
compensation. J udges i n P ERS P lan 3 c an el ect a 1. 6 per cent o f pa y per  year of  s ervice 
benefit, capped at 37.5 percent of average compensation. 
 
Members w ho c hoose t o par ticipate i n J BM w ill ac crue s ervice c redit a t t he hi gher m ultiplier 
beginning w ith t he dat e of  their el ection, pay  hi gher c ontributions, s top c ontributing t o the 
Judicial Retirement Account (JRA), and be  given the option to increase the multiplier on pas t 
judicial service. Members who do not choose to participate will continue to accrue service credit 
at the regular multiplier; continue to participate in JRA, if applicable; never be a participant in the 
JBM Program; and continue to pay contributions at the regular PERS rate. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                              Washington State Auditor's Office 
                                                                                                       71



Skagit County, Washington 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2009 
 
 

 

Justices and j udges w ho ar e new ly el ected or  appoi nted t o j udicial s ervice and c hoose t o 
become P ERS members on o r a fter J anuary 1,  2007,  or  who have not  pr eviously opt ed i nto 
PERS membership, are required to participate in the JBM Program. 

Justices and judges who are newly elected or appointed to judicial service will return to a prior 
PERS Plan if membership had previously been established; be mandated into Plan 2 and not 
have a Plan 3 transfer choice, if a new PERS member; accrue the higher multiplier for all judicial 
service; not contribute to JRA; and not have the option to increase the multiplier for past judicial 
service. 
 
There are 2,300 participating employers in PERS. Details of PERS membership as of the latest 
actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2009 is as follows: 
 

Description  Members 
Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits  73,122 
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits  27,267 
Active Plan Members Vested  105,212 
Active Plan Members Non-vested  56,456 

Total  262,057 
 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 em ployer contribution rates, 
Plan 2 em ployer and e mployee c ontribution r ates, and P lan 3 em ployer c ontribution r ates. 
Employee contribution rates for Plan 1 are established by statute at 6 percent for state agencies 
and l ocal g overnment unit em ployees, and 7. 5 percent for state government elected o fficials. 
The employer and employee  
contribution rates for Plan 2 and the employer contribution rates for Plan 3 are developed by the 
Office o f t he S tate A ctuary t o f ully f und P lan 2 and t he de fined bene fit portion o f P lan 3.  A ll 
employers are required  
to c ontribute at  t he l evel es tablished b y t he Leg islature. U nder P ERS P lan 3,  em ployer 
contributions finance the defined benefit portion of the plan, and member contributions finance 
the defined contribution  
portion. The Employee Retirement Benefits Board sets Plan 3 employee contribution rates. Six 
rate options are available ranging from 5 to 15 percent; two of the options are graduated rates 
dependent on the employee’s age. A s a result of  the implementation of the Judicial Benefit 
Multiplier P rogram i n January 2007,  a second t ier o f e mployer and employee r ates w as 
developed to fund, along with investment earnings, the increased retirement benefits of those 
justices and judges that par ticipate i n the p rogram. The methods us ed t o de termine the 
contribution requirements are established under state statute in accordance with chapters 41.40 
and 41.45 RCW. 
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The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current year covered payroll, as of 
December 31, 2009, were as follows:     
 
Rates for members not participating in JBM are as follows: 
 

Contributor  PERS Plan 1  PERS Plan 2  PERS Plan 3 
Employer*  5.31%  5.31%  5.31%** 
Employee  6.00%  3.90%  *** 

*The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.16%. 
** Plan 3 defined benefit portion only. 
***Variable from 5.0% minimum to 15.0% maximum based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member. 

 
 
Rates for members participating in JBM are as follows: 
 

Contributor  PERS Plan 1  PERS Plan 2  PERS Plan 3 
Employer*  5.31%  5.31%  5.31%** 
Employee  12.26%  9.75%  7.50%*** 

 
*The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.16%. 
**Plan 3 defined benefit portion only. 
***Minimum rate. 
 

 
Both Skagit County and its employees have made the required contributions to the plan. Details 
of these contributions for the years ending December 31 are as follows: 
 

Year  PERS Plan 1  PERS Plan 2  PERS Plan 3 
2009  $114.146  $1,707,116  $430,908 
2008  $158,239  $1,815,233  $468,963 
2007  144,028  1,345,454  304,255 

 

 
B. Law Enforcement Officers’ and Fire Fighters’ Retirement System (LEOFF) Plans 1 

and 2 
 
Plan Description 

LEOFF i s a c ost-sharing m ultiple-employer r etirement s ystem c omprised of  two s eparate 
defined benefit plans. LEOFF par ticipants who j oined the system by September 30, 1977 are 
Plan 1 m embers. T hose w ho j oined on or  af ter October 1,  1977 ar e P lan 2 m embers. 
Membership in the system includes all full-time, fully compensated, local law enforcement 
officers and firefighters. LE OFF membership i s c omprised pr imarily o f non-state e mployees, 
along with t he D epartment o f Fi sh and Wildlife enf orcement o fficers, w ho w ere f irst i ncluded 
prospectively ef fective July 27,  2003 bei ng an e xception. I n addi tion, e ffective J uly 24,  2005 , 
current m embers o f P ERS who ar e em ergency m edical t echnicians c an el ect to bec ome 
members of LEOFF Plan 2. 
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Effective J uly 1,  2003,  t he LE OFF P lan 2 R etirement B oard w as es tablished t o p rovide 
governance of LEOFF Plan 2. The Board’s duties include adopting contribution rates and 
recommending policy changes to the Legislature for the LEOFF Plan 2 retirement plan. 
 
LEOFF de fined bene fit r etirement bene fits are financed from a  c ombination o f i nvestment 
earnings, em ployer and em ployee c ontributions, and c ontributions by t he s tate. LEOFF 
retirement benefit provisions are established in state statute and may be amended by the State 
Legislature. 
 
Plan 1 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service. 
Plan 1 members are eligible for retirement with five years of service at the age of 50. The 
benefit per year of service calculated as a percent of final average salary is as follows: 
 

Service Term  
Percent of Final 
Average Salary 

20 or more years  2.0% 
More than 10 years but less than 20 
years 

 1.5% 

More than 5 years but less than 10 
years 

 1.0% 

 
The final average salary is the basic monthly salary received at the time of retirement, provided 
a member has held the same position or rank for 12 m onths preceding the date of retirement. 
Otherwise, it is the average of the highest consecutive 24 months’ salary within the last 10 years 
of service. A cost-of-living allowance is granted (indexed to the Seattle Consumer Price Index).    
 
Plan 2 retirement benefits are vested after the employee completes five years of eligible service. 
Plan 2 members may retire at the age of 50 with 20 years of service, or at the age of 53 with five 
years of service, with an al lowance of 2 percent of the final average salary per year of service. 
The final average s alary i s bas ed on  t he hi ghest c onsecutive 60 m onths. P lan 2 r etirements 
prior to the age of 53 a re reduced 3 pe rcent for each year that the benefit commences prior to 
age 53, and to reflect the choice of a  
survivor opt ion. T here i s no c ap on y ears o f s ervice c redit; and a c ost-of-living a llowance is  
granted (indexed to the Seattle Consumer Price Index), capped at three percent annually. 
 
There are 451 participating employers in LEOFF. Membership in LEOFF consisted of the 
following as of the latest actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2009: 
 

Description  Amount 
Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits  9,268 
Terminated Plan members Entitled to but not yet Receiving 
Benefits 

 650 

Active Plan Members Vested  13,120 
Active Plan Members Non-vested  3,927 

Total  26,965 
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Funding Policy 

Effective July 1, 2000, Plan 1 em ployers and em ployees will make no contributions as long as 
the plan remains fully funded. Employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the 
Office of the State Actuary. Plan 2 employers and employees are required to pay at the level 
adopted by the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board. All employers are required to contribute at the 
level mandated by s tate law. T he Le gislature by m eans o f a  special f unding arrangement 
appropriated money from the state General Fund to supplement the current service liability and 
fund t he p rior s ervice c osts o f P lan 2 i n ac cordance w ith t he r equirements o f t he P ension 
Funding Council and the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board. However, this  funding arrangement 
is not mandated by the state constitution and the liability could be returned to the employers by 
a c hange o f s tatute. T he m ethods us ed t o det ermine t he c ontribution r ates ar e es tablished 
under state statute in accordance with chapters 41.26 and 41.45 RCW. 
 
The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payroll, as of 
December 31, 2009, were as follows: 

 
Contributor  LEOFF Plan 

1 
 LEOFF Plan 

2 
Employer*  0.16%  5.24% 
Employee  0.00%  8.46% 

 
 *The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.16% 
 
 
Both S kagit C ounty an d its employees m ade the r equired c ontributions to t he plan. S kagit 
County contributions for the years ending December 31 were as follows: 

 
Year  LEOFF Plan 

1 
 LEOFF Plan 

2 
2009  $35  $249,535 
2008  $96  $203,279 
2007  100  189,021 

 

 
C. Public Safety Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) Plan 2 

Plan Description 

PSERS, es tablished J uly 1,  2006  is a  co st-sharing m ultiple-employer r etirement s ystem 
comprised of a single defined benefit plan, PSERS Plan 2.  

PSERS P lan 2 m embership includes full-time employees of a covered employer on or  before 
July 1, 2006, who met at least one of the PSERS eligibility criteria (outlined below), and elected 
membership dur ing the election per iod of July 1, 2006 to September 30, 2006; and t hose full-
time employees, hired on or after July 1, 2006 by a covered employer, that meet at least one of 
the PSERS eligibility criteria.  A covered employer is one that participates in PSERS. Covered 
employers i nclude: S tate o f Washington agencies: D epartment o f C orrections, D epartment of 
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Natural R esources, P arks and R ecreation C ommission, Gambling C ommission, Washington 
State Patrol, and Liquor Control Board; Washington state counties, and Washington state cities 
except for Seattle, Tacoma, and Spokane. 
 
To be eligible for PSERS, an employee must work on a full-time basis and: 

• Have c ompleted a c ertified c riminal j ustice training c ourse w ith aut hority t o ar rest, 
conduct criminal investigations, enforce the criminal laws of Washington, and carry a 
firearm as part of the job: OR 

• Have primary responsibility to ensure the custody and security of incarcerated or 
probationary individuals; OR 

• Function as a limited authority Washington peace officer, as defined in RCW 
10.93.020; OR 

• Have pr imary r esponsibility t o s upervise el igible m embers w ho m eet the abov e 
criteria. 

PSERS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment 
earnings and  em ployer and em ployee contributions. PSERS r etirement benefit pr ovisions ar e 
established in state statute and may be amended only by the State Legislature. 

Plan 2 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service 
and attains the age of 65. PSERS Plan 2 members may retire at the age of 65 with five years of 
service, or at the age of 60 with at least 10 years of PSERS service credit, with an allowance of 
2 per cent o f the av erage final c ompensation per  y ear o f s ervice. The av erage final 
compensation i s t he m onthly av erage o f t he member’s 60 consecutive hi ghest-paid s ervice 
credit months, ex cluding any  s everance pay  s uch as  l ump-sum payments f or de ferred s ick 
leave, vacation or annual leave. Plan 2 retirees prior to the age of 60 receive reduced benefits. 
If retirement is at 53 or older with at least 20 years of service, a 3 percent per year reduction for 
each year between the age at retirement and age 60 applies. There is no cap on years of 
service credit; and a cost-of-living allowance is granted (indexed to the Seattle Consumer Price 
Index), capped at 3 percent annually. 
 
There ar e 302 participating e mployers i n P SERS. T here w ere 3982 active non -vested pl an 
members as of the latest actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2009. 
 

Description  Amount 
Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits  1 
Active Plan Members Non-vested  3,981 

Total  3,982 
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Funding Policy 

Each bi ennium, t he s tate P ension Fundi ng C ouncil adopt s P lan 2 em ployer and em ployee 
contribution rates. The employer and em ployee contribution rates for Plan 2 ar e developed by 
the Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2. All employers are required to contribute at 
the l evel es tablished b y t he Leg islature. The m ethods us ed t o de termine t he c ontribution 
requirements are established under state statute in accordance with chapters 41.37 and 41. 45 
RCW. 
 
The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payroll, as of 
December 31, 2009 were as follows: 
 

Contributor  PSERS Plan 
2 

Employer*  7.85% 
Employee  6.55% 

 
*The employer rate includes an employer administrative expense fee of 0.16% 

 
 
Both S kagit C ounty an d its employees m ade the r equired c ontributions to t he plan. S kagit 
County’s contributions for the years ended December 31 were as follows: 
 

Year  PSERS Plan 
2 

2009  $132,608 
2008  $124,059 
2007  85,209 

 
 
D.    Other Post Employment Benefit Plans (OPEB) 
 
State law requires the County to pay medical and nursing care costs for LEOFF Plan 1 retirees. 
Authority for changes in benefits for the LEOFF Plan 1 resides with the Washington state law 
and the Employee Retirement Benefits Board (ERBB). Members of the ERBB are appointed by 
the Governor.  
 
Effective f or the C ounty’s 2008 r eporting y ear, G ASB S tatement N o. 45,  A ccounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers for Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, requires 
other post employment benefits (OPEB) expenses to be accrued based on a computed annual 
required contribution (ARC). ARC represents the current period’s service cost and the amount 
necessary to amortize the unfunded actuarial liability.   
 
We have used the alternative measurement method permitted under GASB Statement No. 45. 
A s ingle r etirement a ge o f 56 .22 w as as sumed for al l ac tive m embers for t he pur pose o f 
determining t he ac tuarial ac crued l iability. T ermination and m ortality r ates w ere as sumed t o 
follow t he LE OFF P lan 1 t ermination and m ortality r ates us ed i n t he S eptember 30 , 2006  
actuarial v aluation r eport i ssued by  t he O ffice of  t he Washington S tate A ctuary ( OSA). 
Healthcare costs and trends were determined by Milliman, Inc., actuarial consultants, and used 
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by the OSA in a s tatewide LEOFF Plan 1 m edical study performed in 2007.  T he results were 
based on g rouped data with 4 ac tive g roupings and 4 i nactive g roupings.  T he ac tuarial cost 
method used to determine the actuarial accrued liability was Projected Unit Credit. These 
assumptions are considered individually and collectively reasonable for the purposes of this 
valuation. The alternative measurement used in the 2008 financial statements was used again 
in the 2009 financial statements, as authorized by GASB Statement No. 45.  
 
The following table illustrates the components of the May 13, 2009, 30 year amortization period 
actuarial study. 
  

Further Breakdown of Key Results   
   PVFB AAL 
Active:     

  
Medical 
Expenses $268,778  $231,375  

  Long-Term Care $68,815  $59,239  
  Total Active $337,593  $290,614  
Inactive:     

  
Medical 
Expenses $3,074,058  $3,074,058  

  Long-Term Care $1,209,411  $1,209,411  
  Total Inactive $4,283,469  $4,283,469  
Total  $4,621,062  $4,574,083  
      
ARC     
  Normal Cost $39,595    

  
UAAL 
Amortization $425,910    

ARC  $465,505    
      
Annual OPEB Cost    
  ARC $465,505    
  NOO Interest $0    

  
NOO 
Amortization $0    

Annual OPEB Cost $465,505    
 

Annual OPEB costs $465,505 less expenses $278,878 net OPEB obligation $186,627 

The actual expense constitutes 40% of the ARC.  The County’s actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 
of $4,574,084 was unfunded as of December 31, 2009.  
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VII. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Liability Insurance 

Skagit County was one of the twenty-eight m embers of the Washington C ounties R isk Pool 
(“Pool”) du ring 2009.   Other m embers i ncluded: A dams, B enton, C helan, C lallam and C lark, 
Columbia, Cowlitz, Douglas and Fr anklin, Garfield, Grays Harbor, Island and Jefferson, Kitsap, 
Kittitas, Lewis and Mason, Okanogan, Pacific, Pend Oreille and San Juan, Skamania, Spokane 
and T hurston, Walla Walla, Whatcom and Y akima Counties.  K lickitat and Whitman Counties 
were former Pool members, but terminated their memberships effective October 2002 and 2003 
respectively. 

The Pool was formed August 18, 1988 when several Washington counties signed an Interlocal 
(Cooperative) A greement.  It w as es tablished t o p rovide i ts member c ounties w ith “ joint” 
programs and services including self-insurance, purchasing of insurance, and contracting for or 
hiring o f pe rsonnel t o pr ovide adm inistrative s ervices, c laims handl ing and r isk management.  
The Pool operates under Washington’s “pooling” laws, more specifically Chapters 48.62 RCW 
and 82.60 WAC and implemented via Chapter 39.34 RCW.   It is overseen by the State Risk 
Manager and is subject to fiscal audits performed annually by the State Auditor. 

The enabling Interlocal Agreement was amended once in 2000 to add the Membership 
Compact, a c ommitment t o s trengthen t he P ool by  he lping i ts m ember c ounties i mplement 
and/or enhance local risk management efforts to reduce losses and support the best 
management o f the Pool and i ts r esources.  T he Compact es tablished obl igations t o support 
these goals through three major elements; membership involvement, risk control practices, and 
a targeted risk management program. 

The Pool’s mission is: To provide comprehensive and ec onomical risk coverage; to reduce the 
frequency and severity of losses; and to decrease costs incurred in the managing and l itigation 
of claims. The Pool’s core values include: being committed to learn, understand and respond to 
the member counties’ insurance needs; being committed to establish working relationships with 
all m embers t hat i dentify bus iness i ssues and j ointly de velop s olutions; m ember c ounties 
commit to allocate necessary resources to risk management in their own operations; the Pool’s 
board of directors and professional staff share a commitment to manage the organization based 
on sound business principles, benchmarked industry standards and measurable outcomes; and 
being committed to continuous planning and innovation in product development and service 
delivery. 

New m embers ar e required t o pay  t he P ool m odest adm ittance fees to c over t he m embers’ 
share o f or ganizational ex penses and t he c osts t o anal yze t heir l oss data and risk pr ofile.  
Members contract initially to remain in the Pool for at least five years.  Counties may terminate 
their memberships at the conclusion of any Pool fiscal year following the initial term if the county 
timely files its required advance written notice.  Otherwise, the Interlocal Agreement is renewed 
automatically for another year.  Even after termination, a former member remains responsible 
for reassessments from the Pool for any unresolved, unreported, and i n-process claims for the 
period they were a signatory to the Interlocal Agreement. 

The P ool i s governed by  a boar d of  di rectors c onsisting of one di rector (and at  l east one  
alternate director) designated by each member county.  The Pool’s board of directors, made up 
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of both elected and app ointed county o fficials, meets three t imes each year w ith the summer 
meeting being the Annual Meeting.  The board of directors is responsible for determining the 3rd

Regular oversight of the Pool’s operations is furnished by an 11-person executive committee.  
The c ommitteepersons are el ected by  t he P ool’s boar d o f di rectors from i ts m embership t o 
staggered 3 -year t erms dur ing eac h A nnual Meeting.  T he c ommittee m eets s everal t imes 
throughout the year to approve all Pool disbursements and examine the Pool’s financial health; 
to appr ove case settlements exceeding the members’ deduc tibles by  at  l east $50 ,000 and  t o 
review a ll c laims with i ncurred l oss es timates exceeding $100, 000; t o evaluate t he E xecutive 
Director and the Pool’s operations and program deliverables; and to participate in the board’s 
standing committees (finance, personnel, risk management, and under writing) for development 
or review/revision of the organization’s policies and coverage documents. 

-
party liability coverage to be offered (approving the insuring agreement or coverage document), 
the reinsurance program to acquire, the excess insurances to be jointly purchased or offered for 
optional purchase, and approving the Pool’s annual operating budgets and work programs, and 
the member deposit assessment formulas. 

The following constitute the highlights from the Pool’s most recently completed Policy (Fiscal) 
Year (October 2008 through September 2009): 

• Operating Income was experienced during the year of $1.15 million, a 40% increase from 
FY-2008. 

• Interest Income slipped to just $0.22 million (-65%) due to the nearly non-existent interest 
rates associated with the national and worldwide recession.   

• Total Assets grew by $4.64 million (15%) to more than $35.71 million.  S pecifically, current 
assets i ncreased $4. 69 million ( 16%) while non -current as sets dec reased $0. 05 m illion ( -
4%). 

• 966 c ases w ere added to t he R isk P ool’s c laims-related dat abase dur ing the y ear w hich 
raised t he t o-date (Oct. 1988 – Sep. 2009)  t otal of  third-party l iability c laims and l awsuits 
submitted by  WCRP member counties to 16,470.  Only 492 c ases remained c lassified as  
“open” at year’s end.  Independent actuarial estimates suggest another 553 claims may be 
filed for covered occurrences from all years-to-date through September 2009. 

• Net Assets (also referred t o as  Members’ Equity) i ncreased near ly $1. 38 m illion t o m ore 
than $8. 16 million at  S eptember 30,  2009.   $6.35 m illion i s c lassified as  ‘ Restricted’ to 
satisfy the Section D provisions of the WCRP Underwriting Policy that were enhanced by the 
Board of Directors in March 2007.  Another $1.06 million is invested in Capital Assets (net of 
debt).  The remaining $0.76 million is listed as ‘Non-Restricted’ and is available.  The WCRP 
Board o f D irectors i s the aut hority t o dec ide i f, how m uch, and w hen distributions o f any  
(Non-Restricted) Net Assets are to be made. 

Professionals from s ome of  t he most r espected or ganizations w orldwide ar e c alled upon  
regularly t o address specific needs  of t he Pool.  For  example, independent ac tuarial services 
are furnished by PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP; insurance brokerage and advanced loss 
control services are provided by Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.; coverage 
counsel is provided by Stafford Frey Cooper; and special claims audits are frequently performed 
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by t he P ool’s i nsurers and r e-insurers.  T hese professionals are in addi tion to t he m any 
contracted and i n-county c ounselors as signed t o def end P ool c ases, as  well as  t he ong oing 
oversight provided by the State Risk Manager and the annual financial audits performed by the 
State Auditor. 

Over hal f o f t he P ool’s 9 -person s taff handl es and/or manages t he several hundr ed l iability 
cases filed upon and s ubmitted by  t he P ool’s m ember c ounties eac h year.  These c laims 
professionals have more than eighty years combined claims-handling experience.  The Pool’s 
“open” file count r emains fairly constant be tween 400 and 500  cases.  Other s taffers pr ovide 
various m ember s ervices i ncluding c onducting risk a ssessments an d c ompliance audi ts, 
coordinating numerous trainings, researching other coverage and marketing, with some simply 
supporting the organization’s administrative needs. 

Pool m ember counties presently acquire $20 million ( with anot her $5 million opt ional) of  joint 
liability coverage on a “per occurrence” basis for 3rd

Property insurance, with composite limits of $500 million for normal (“All Other Perils”) coverage 
and $250 million f or c atastrophe c overage and  par ticipant deduc tibles between $5, 000 and  
$50,000, was added to the Pool coverage lines a few years ago as an individual county option.  
Coverage i s for s tructures, v ehicles, mobile eq uipment, E DP eq uipment, and e quipment 
breakdown, etc.  Participants are responsible for their claims’ deductibles.  The commercial 
insurers are responsible for covered losses exceeding the participant deductibles to the 
maximum limits of the policy.  Twenty-six counties purchased this program during 2009. 

-party bodily injury, personal injury, property 
damage, errors and omissions, and advertising injury, and includes public officials’ errors and 
omissions.  Annually, members select a per occurrence deductible amount of $10,000, $25,000, 
$50,000, $100,000, $250,000 or $500,000.  The initial $10 million of coverage, less the retention 
(the greater o f t he member’s deduc tible or  $100, 000), i s f ully r einsured by  s uperior-rated 
commercial c arriers.  The r emaining i nsurance, up t o $15 m illion, i s a cquired f rom superior-
rated commercial carriers as “following form” excess insurance.  There are no aggr egate limits 
to the payments made for any one member county or all member counties combined. 

Additionally, m any m embers us e t he P ool’s pr oducer ( broker) s ervices f or ot her i nsurance 
placements, e.g. public officials bonds, and crime & fidelity, special events/concessionaires, and 
environmental hazards coverage. 

The Washington Counties Risk Pool is a cooperative program, so there is joint liability amongst 
its participating members.  Contingent liabilities are established when assets are not sufficient to 
cover l iabilities.  P ool member c ounties ar e r equired to t imely s ubmit t heir 3 rd

 

-party lia bility 
claims w hich ar e handl ed by  t he P ool’s s taff.  T his i ncludes es tablishing r eserves for bo th 
reported and unr eported covered events, as well as estimates of the undiscounted future cash 
payments for losses and related claims adjustment expenses.  Deficits resulting from any Pool 
fiscal year ar e financed by pr oportional r eassessments against t hat year’s m embership.  The 
Pool’s reassessments receivable balance at December 31, 2009 remains at ZERO. 
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The following schedule details the current year’s and the prior two year’s claims liability activity: 
 

Fiscal Year  
Beginning 
Balance  

Current Year 
Claims & 

Changes in 
Estimate  

 Claim 
Payments   

Year End 
Balance 

2007  281,916  446,936  301,977  426,875 
2008  426,875  770,534  128,020  1,069,389 
2009  1,069,389  659,452  98,727  1,630,114 

 
 
Other Insurance 
 
Employee on -the-job i njuries ar e c overed by  industrial i nsurance t hrough the State of 
Washington Department of  Labo r &  I ndustries ( L&I). A ll em ployees and s ome v olunteers, 
except LE OFF-1 m embers and ferry c rewmembers, a re c overed t o s tatutory l imits. I ndustrial 
insurance (L&I) rates are occupation and experience based, with base premiums adjusted for 
individual ent ity c laims experience. The experience modification m ultiplier for 1.1282 in 2007, 
and 1.1825 in 2008, and 1.1562 in 2009. 

Skagit Co unty is  s elf-insured for unemployment claims. These claims are pr ocessed by  t he 
Washington State Department o f Employment Security and the county i s bi lled for them on a 
quarterly bas is.   The County has  es tablished an U nemployment C ompensation Fund  which 
charges other County funds based  
on estimates o f future c laims, and pay s t he c laims when t hey ar e bi lled. T he Unemployment 
Compensation Fund had net assets of $(116,236) at December 31, 2009.  
 
The County is self-insured for dental insurance claims. Washington Dental Services serves as 
the third par ty adm inistrator and bi lls t he C ounty f or c laims pai d.  Administrative f ees and 
charges paid to Washington Dental Service totaled $83,860 for 2009. Dental claims activity for 
2009 and the preceding two years is as follows:  

 

Fiscal Year  
Beginning 
Balance  

Current Year 
Claims & 

Changes in 
Estimate  

 Claim 
Payments   

Year End 
Balance 

2007  $103,338  $733,387  $726,892  $109,833 
2008  109,833  728,401  728,899  109,335 
2009  109,335  781,120  774,309  116,146 
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The County is self-insured for medical insurance coverage for eligible employees. The claims 
processing is administered by Trusteed Plans. The County’s health benefits broker, Wells 
Fargo, determines the premiums charged to County f unds. These amounts are transferred to 
the I nsurance S ervices Fund, w hich pay s t he am ount billed by  t he c laims pr ocessor. A n 
insurance policy is in place to cover claims in excess of $200,000 per claimant. Administrative 
fees and c harges paid to Trusteed Plans totaled $336,574 for 2009. Medical claims activity for 
2009 and the preceding two years is as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year  
Beginning 
Balance  

Current Year 
Claims & 

Changes in 
Estimate  

 Claim 
Payments   

Year End 
Balance 

2007  1,163,142  5,718,129  5,694,845  1,186,426 
2008  1,186,426  7,008,799  6,782,255  1,412,970 
2009  1,142,970  6,514,202  6,560,418  1,096,754 

 
 
VIII. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND LITIGATION 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment. Any 
disallowed c laims, i ncluding a mounts al ready c ollected, may c onstitute a l iability of  the 
applicable fund. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by a grantor is 
expected to be immaterial. 

As discussed in Note V, the County is contingently liable for repayment of refunded debt. 

Skagit County i s named as  the defendant in various lawsuits. A lthough the outcome of these 
legal actions is not presently determinable, the County is of the opinion that present reserves 
are available to adequately cover potential settlements without adversely affecting the financial 
condition of the County.  

On M arch 24,  2003,  t he B oard of  C ounty C ommissioners o f S kagit County ent ered i nto a 
contingent l oan ag reement w ith t he Skagit Regional Public Fac ilities D istrict. The D istrict has  
authorized t he i ssuance and s ale of  l imited s ales t ax obl igation bonds  i n t he am ount o f 
$9,685,000. The C ounty and t he D istrict en tered i nto an Interlocal agreement w hereby t he 
County ag reed to l end to t he D istrict a mounts s ufficient, together w ith t he s ales t ax and  net  
operating r evenues o f the D istrict, t o pay  al l debt  s ervice on t he bon ds and any  addi tional 
bonds. The a ggregate p rincipal am ount o f ou tstanding l oans by  t he C ounty i s not  t o ex ceed 
$10,000,000.  As of December 31, 2009, there have been no l oans made by the County to the 
Public Facilities District. 
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Leasing Commitments 

Future minimum rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining 
non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2009 are as follows: 
 

Rental
Year Payments Due
2010 191,722 
2011 92,637 
2012 42,615 
2013 1,419 
Total $328,393 

 
 
2009 rent expense for all operating leases, except those with terms of a month or less that were 
not renewed was $55,002. 
 
Construction 
 
At December 31, 2009, the County had pending construction project contracts in progress.  The 
commitments related to the remaining contract balances are summarized as follows: 
 

Total Expended to Balance 

Contracts 12/31/09 Unexpended

Governmental Activities  
Road Fund 2,410,575           325,219              2,085,356           
Total Governmental Activities 2,410,575$         325,219$            2,085,356$         

 
 
Landfill Post Closure Costs 

State and federal l aws and r egulations r equire Skagit County t o per form landfill m aintenance 
and monitoring activities for a minimum of twenty to thirty years after closure.  Accordingly, a 
liability for post closure costs in the amount of $3,186,737 is reported in the solid waste fund at 
December 31, 2009. 

Post closure care cost estimates are based on the minimum number of years of maintenance 
and monitoring required by law multiplied by the current annual expense incurred. The actual 
future cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and 
regulations. 
 
Liabilities for Pollution Remediation Obligations 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 49, “Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations”, which became effective for the 
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2008 reporting year, liabilities for environmental cleanup obligations were recorded in the Solid 
Waste Fund and the Equipment Rental and Revolving Fund.  
 
The S olid Waste Fund r ecognized a l iability of  $ 601,789 for the Whitmarsh Land fill s ite and  
$779,340 for the Sinnes Road Landfill s ite. Skagit County has been named a potentially l iable 
party under  t he Washington S tate M odel T oxics C ontrol A ct for t he c ost o f env ironmental 
cleanup at  t he Whitmarsh s ite. In 2008 the C ounty ent ered i nto an  a greed or der, al ong w ith 
other responsible par ties, to conduct a remedial investigation, feasibility s tudy, and dev elop a 
cleanup plan. Testing at the site of the Sinnes  
Road Land fill has  r evealed g roundwater c ontamination i n ex cess o f state standards. The 
County is currently developing a remediation plan for this site.   

The Equipment Rental and Revolving Fund recognized a liability of $67,295 for costs relating to 
the monitoring and potential cleanup of soil and water contamination at the site of underground 
fuel storage tanks.  

These liabilities were computed using the expected cash flow technique, with probabilities 
assigned to a range of potential costs. They are recorded net of possible insurance recoveries. 
The ac tual future costs may be hi gher due t o inflation, changes in t echnology, or  changes in 
environmental laws and regulations. 
 
IX. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

Road Fund – A construction bi lling in t he amount o f $16,051 was expensed in 2005 w hen it 
should have been paid against an accrual account. 

Park Improvement Fund – Over a nu mber o f y ears t he grant r evenue ac cruals w ere not  
properly reversed and/or calculated.  This resulted in an overstated revenue receivable amount 
of $146,912. 

Equipment Rental and Revolving Fund – The calculation for ER&R depreciation since 1998 
was incorrectly done resulting in a cumulative amount of $651,051.  This was discovered when 
a new capital asset depreciation program was implemented by the county. 

Government Wide Statements – The calculation for infrastructure depreciation was incorrectly 
done in prior years resulting in a cumulative amount of $25,536,425.  This was discovered when 
a new capital asset depreciation program was implement by the county. 

Solid Waste Fund – The prior period adjustment of $589,669 consisted of reconciling items on 
the fixed asset list.  
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SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the year ended December 31, 2009 

 
 
NOTE 1 – BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 

This schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as Skagit County’s financial 
statements. Skagit County, in compliance with generally accepted accounting practices, uses 
modified accrual accounting for government funds and accrual accounting for proprietary 
funds. 
 
 

NOTE 2 – PROGRAM COSTS 
 

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of 
the program costs.  Entire program costs, including Skagit County’s portion, are more than 
shown. 
 

 
NOTE 3 – NONCASH AWARDS - VACCINATIONS 
 

The amount of vaccines reported on the schedule is the value of vaccine received by Skagit 
County during 2009 and priced as prescribed by the Department of Health. 

 
 
NOTE 4 – INDIRECT COST RATE 
 

The amount expended includes a percentage claimed as an indirect cost recovery using an 
approved indirect cost rate.  These rates are as shown below: 
 
  (a) 20%,    (b) 25%    (c) 26.95%   (d) 20.96%  (e) 10% 

 
 
NOTE 5 – AMOUNTS AWARDED TO SUBRECIPIENTS 
 

Included in the total amount expended for this program are dollars passed through to a 
sub recipient that administered its own project. 
 
 

NOTE 6- PROGRAM INCOME 
 

The amount reported for 93.045, 93.705 and 93.707 is net of $207,644 received as 
program income. 
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NOTE 7 – CREP RENTAL PAYMENTS 
 

These funds are land rental payments from the CREP program.  There are no expenses 
directly related to these payments. 

 
 

NOTE 8 – AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) of 2009 
 

Expenditures for this program were funded by ARRA  
 

 
NOTE 9 – UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON FIXTED PRICE AGREEMENT 
 

These funds represent revenue received for a fixed price agreement.  This grant is 
complete and expenses totaled $1,788.92.  
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE                   
 
 
The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive 
branch of state government.  The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves 
four-year terms. 
 
Our mission is to work in cooperation with our audit clients and citizens as an advocate for 
government accountability.  As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence 
necessary to objectively perform audits and investigations.  Our audits are designed to comply with 
professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws. 
 
The State Auditor's Office employees are located around the state to deliver our services effectively 
and efficiently.   
 
Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the part 
of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of higher 
education.  In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local governments and 
fraud, whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.   
 
The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available on 
our Web site and through our free, electronic subscription service.  We continue to refine our 
reporting efforts to ensure the results of our audits are useful and understandable.  
 
We take our role as partners in accountability seriously.  We provide training and technical 
assistance to governments and have an extensive quality assurance program. 
 
 
State Auditor Brian Sonntag, CGFM 
Chief of Staff Ted Rutt 
Deputy Chief of Staff Doug Cochran 
Chief Policy Advisor Jerry Pugnetti 
Director of Audit  Chuck Pfeil, CPA 
Director of Special Investigations Jim Brittain, CPA 
Director for Legal Affairs Jan Jutte, CPA, CGFM 
Director of Quality Assurance Ivan Dansereau 
Local Government Liaison Mike Murphy 
Communications Director Mindy Chambers 
Public Records Officer Mary Leider 
Main number (360) 902-0370 
Toll-free Citizen Hotline (866) 902-3900 
 
Website www.sao.wa.gov 
Subscription Service                          https://www.sao.wa.gov/EN/News/Subscriptions/ 

http://www.sao.wa.gov/
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